
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
Ty Wessell, Chairman 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
The Executive Board Session of the Leelanau County Board of Commissioners will be held on Tuesday, December 5, 2023, at 

9:00 a.m., in the Commissioner Meeting Room, Leelanau County Government Center, Suttons Bay, Michigan 
(Please silence any unnecessary cellular/electronic devices) 

(Proceedings of the meeting are being recorded and are not the official record of the meeting; 
the formally approved/accepted written copy of the minutes will be the official record of the meeting.) 

TENTATIVE AGENDA 
CALL TO ORDER  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

MOMENT OF SILENCE/PRIVATE PRAYER 
ROLL CALL 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA / LATE ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS  
COMMUNICATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS: PAGE # 

• Administrator Update 
• Substance Misuse Coalition, Rebekah TenBrink and Audrey Sharp 2-4 

PUBLIC COMMENT (3 Minutes, agenda-specific) 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

ACTION ITEMS 
1. FY 2024 Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) 

Contract Renewal, Matt Coulson and Robert Hauch. 5-27 
2. Leelanau County Substance Misuse Coalition – Transfer of Fiduciary Responsibility 

to Catholic Human Services. 28-48 
3. Sheriff’s Office – FY2024 LCSO K9 Golf Outing Fundraiser. 49 
4. Human Resources –  

a. FY 2024 Blue Cross/Blue Shield Renewal (renewal documentation will be handed out) – 
i. Contract Renewal. 50 
ii. Administration Fee. 51 

5. Probate/Family Court – Ottawa County Juvenile Detention Bed Rental Agreement. 52-59 
6. Drain Commissioner – Proposed Contract Renewal, GEI Consultants, Inc. 60-75 
7. Senior Services – Acceptance of Donation. 76-77  
8. Clerk –  

a. Software Purchase, Fidlar Technologies. 78-93  
b. Equipment Purchase, ElectionSource, no attachment.  

9. Boards and Commissions Appointments –  94-139 
a. Committee of the Whole Recommendations. 97-98 
b. Construction Board of Appeals. 103-120 
c. Northern Lakes Community Mental Health Authority. 121-139 

10. Finance Department – 
a. Year End Adjustments. 140 
b. End of Year Special Session Request. 

11. Finance Committee Recommendations.  
12. Personnel Committee Update.  
13. Administration –  

a. DCS Technology Contract Renewal. 141-148  
b. Administrator Performance Evaluation Process.   

REVIEW OF FINANCIALS 
SPECIAL REPORTS BY STAFF, COMMISSIONERS, AND AFFILIATED AGENCIES 

PUBLIC COMMENT (5 Minutes) 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
APPROVAL OF FINANCIALS 

• Amendments & Transfers 
• Miscellaneous Fund Transfers and Amendments 
• Claims and Accounts 
• Post Audit  

ADJOURNMENT  

A live streaming of this meeting will be available for viewing via the following link – 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCNQTgIgcTedF2qB8floC1GQ?view_as=subscriber 

There are two ways to provide public comment during the meeting – you can attend in-person, or email your comments prior 
to the meeting to clerk@leelanau.gov  
 

1

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCNQTgIgcTedF2qB8floC1GQ?view_as=subscriber
mailto:clerk@leelanau.gov


Leelanau County Substance Misuse Prevention Coalition

EVENTS AND MEETINGS

Rock Climbing with High Schoolers
April 7th
4 students

Coalition Meeting
April 14th
14 individuals

Leelanau County Prom
May 6th
228 students

Suttons Bay High School Senior All-Night Party
June 4th and 5th
23 students

Coalition Meeting
June 9th
8 individuals

Boxing with Teenagers
June 9th
3 students

Senior Expo
June 20th

Coalition Meeting
August 11
13 individuals

Field Trip to Art Prize in Grand Rapids
September 23rd
7 students

2



Coalition Meeting
November 3rd
5 individuals

Paintballing with High Schoolers
November 4th
10 students

MiPHY

The Michigan Profile for Healthy Youth (MiPHY) is an online student health survey
offered by the Michigan Departments of Education and Health and Human Services
to support local and regional needs assessment. The MiPHY provides student results
on health risk behaviors including substance use, violence, physical activity, nutrition,
sexual behavior, and emotional health in grades 7, 9, and 11. The survey also measures
risk and protective factors most predictive of alcohol, tobacco, and other drug use
and violence. MiPHY results, along with other school-reported data, will help schools
make data-driven decisions to improve prevention and health promotion
programming.

MiPHY was last administered in Leelanau County in 2018 with some schools citing
parent pushback as the reason for not continuing it. LCSMPC met with the
superintendents of the four public schools who all gave their preliminary approval.

TRAININGS

Fentanyl Poisoning Presentations to all 9th through 12th graders at Suttons Bay and
Leland Schools

Scott Scholten shared with the Coalition about Wellbriety and from The Red Road to
Wellbriety In the Native American

John Boonstra presented on Prevention 101

3



Ryan Hannon to present on homelessness in our area

AGENCIES REPRESENTED

Leelanau Investing For Teens (Rebekah TenBrink and Audrey Sharp)
- Daily no-cost afterschool programming for 6th through 8th graders at Suttons

Bay, Northport, and Glen Lake Schools
- Weekly no-cost activities for 9th through 12th-grade students at Suttons Bay

and Northport Schools
- Weekly leadership classes at Leland Schools
- No-cost summertime programming with transportation included

The Friendship Community Center (Rebekah TenBrink and Audrey Sharp)
- Free wellness classes
- Monthly potlucks
- Meals on Wheels

Leelanau County Senior Services (Gail Carlson)
- Meals on Wheels
- Resources listed in newsletters

Leelanau County Family Courts (Judge Marian Kromkowski and John Boonstra)
- Voices and Choices
- Guys’ Group
- FAST Team

Leelanau County Family Coordinating Council (Sharon Vreeland)

Catholic Human Services/ Up North Prevention (Sharon Vreeland)

Grand Traverse Band of Ottawa and Chippewa Indians (Scott Scholten)

League of Women Voters (Tricia Denton)

Michigan State Police (Kip Belcher)

4



5



 5:11 PM

November 27, 2023

74 of 83 

County of Leelanau

Report:  Rbudsta2.rpt 

Period Ending Date:  September 30, 2023

2024 ADOPTED BUDGET

Account Number

Department   830865  Insurance

Fund   101  General Fund 

2021 Audited 2022 Audited 2023 

Year-to-Date

2023 Adopted 

Budget

2023 Amended 

Budget

2024 Proposed 

Budget

2024 BOC 

Changes & Dept 

Requests

2024 Adopted 

Budget

Account Name

Department  830865  Insurance

Expenses

 238,434.00  224,771.00 226,299.00  224,771.00Insurance (Liability)
830865-954.000

 238,434.00 238,434.00  238,434.00 238,434.00

 238,434.00  238,434.00  238,434.00  238,434.00 226,299.00  224,771.00  224,771.00Expenses Total    238,434.00

 238,434.00  238,434.00 224,771.00Insurance Dept Total  226,299.00  238,434.00 224,771.00  238,434.00  238,434.00

6



Serving Michigan municipalities since 1980

Introducing
mmrma

Leelanau County

Coverage Proposal
2024-2025

7



MMRMA is member driven and member 
focused. Simply put, the efforts of our staff 
and service providers are dedicated exclusively 
to meeting the needs of the membership. For 
decades, MMRMA’s programs and services have 
been recognized and awarded by the Public 
Risk Management Association (PRIMA) and 
other national pooling organizations, firmly 
establishing our reputation as a leader in public 
entity pooling. 

Membership in MMRMA provides many 
outstanding benefits, including:

Broad, occurrence-based municipal liability 
coverage

Comprehensive property coverage

Data breach and privacy liability coverage

Cutting-edge risk control training and 
resources, best practices reviews, and other 
services

Risk Avoidance Program (RAP) and 
Certification and Accreditation Program 
(CAP) grants for qualified projects with 
member matching funds

Leadership & Governance
MMRMA was created pursuant to the laws of 
the State of Michigan. Members enter into a 
Joint Powers Agreement (JPA), MMRMA’s central 
governing document. 

MMRMA is governed by a Board of Directors 
elected of and by the membership. The 
Executive Director, appointed by the Board of 
Directors, serves as chief executive officer and 
is responsible for the operations and functions 
of the organization.

Member employees assume active roles in 
MMRMA through their service on various 
committees, including advisory groups 
addressing these functional risk control areas: 
administration, corrections, fire & EMS, health 
facilities, law enforcement, parks & recreation, 
public services, and 911/telecommunications.

Member Services
MMRMA’s regional and in-house risk managers 
work directly with members to coordinate 
renewals, disseminate coverage details and 
contribution costs, and provide other services 
on behalf of MMRMA.

Risk Control 
One of MMRMA’s hallmarks is a highly 
proactive approach to risk control. Specialized 
consultants and other risk control staff prepare 
model policies and procedures, develop and 
coordinate training opportunities, and assist 
members in identifying and mitigating loss 
exposures. Our innovative Risk Avoidance 
Program (RAP) provides grants to help fund our 
members’ risk control initiatives. MMRMA has 
also introduced Certification and Accreditation 
Program (CAP) grants to assist members in 
pursuing key credentials.

Underwriting
MMRMA’s underwriting department achieves 
its primary function – determining member 
contributions – using rating plans developed 
by consulting actuaries and approved by the 
Board of Directors. Their diligent work ensures 
adequate revenue and a consistent, equitable 
approach to pricing. The team studies exposure 
and loss data, evaluates hazards, and sets 
contribution amounts accordingly. Working 
closely with our risk managers, the underwriting 
staff develops coverage and pricing proposals 
for new and renewing members. 

Claims 
MMRMA’s claims adjusters are experts in 
handling the specific types of claims facing 
governmental entities. Our team processes over 
3,700 cases annually, working closely with 
legal professionals and members to provide 
outstanding service and the best possible 
outcomes.

Legal Guidance
Several Michigan law firms noted for their 
expertise in municipal exposures offer litigation 
services in all areas of municipal operations 
for MMRMA members. These firms provide legal 
defense via branch offices throughout the state.

Accounting & Finance
MMRMA’s stellar finance team is experienced in 
accounting, insurance, and government. They 
maintain our accounting records in a scrupulous 
manner that fairly reflects the operating results 
and financial position of MMRMA. They also 
monitor and comply with a system of internal 
controls, ensuring that the organization meets 
or exceeds all applicable accounting rules, 
standards, and the compliance regulations of 
MMRMA’s governing authorities.

A Rich History
MMRMA was founded in 1980 as a joint 
purchasing arrangement by three municipalities. 
Their aim: to secure necessary insurance 
coverage at a reasonable price in a marketplace 
that was becoming increasingly unfriendly to 
public entities. 

By the mid-1980s, commercial insurers either 
ceased to offer coverage to governmental 
entities or sharply increased their premiums. 
MMRMA responded in 1985 by assuming risk 
directly in order to offer its members the 
affordable, reliable coverage they still enjoy 
today.

Once the framework of the organization was 
in place, the next priority was to develop 
the necessary resources and capabilities 
for a sophisticated insurance organization. 
Initially, MMRMA relied upon contract service 
providers to execute its many operations. As 
MMRMA evolved, these functions were brought 
in-house, one by one: underwriting, claims 
administration, risk control, information 
services, and finance. 

Today, MMRMA is a nationally recognized leader 
and the largest liability and property pool 
in Michigan. Our staff and service providers 
are steadfastly committed to serving the 
membership. Together, we will continue to 
excel as we face the ever-evolving landscape 
and challenges of municipal government.

www.mmrma.org

RISK

Michigan Municipal

Risk Management
A u t h o r i t y

Tim McClorey
Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority

14001 Merriman Road, Livonia, MI 48154
Telephone:  713.513.0300
Toll Free:  800.243.1324

Cell:  248.310.0052

For more information, please contact:
Matt Coulson

mcoulson@mmrma.org 8



 1 

 

 
 

** SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENT ** 
Board Approves $29.7 Million Direct Distribution to Members 

 

At its January 19th meeting, MMRMA’s Board of Directors acted to declare a $29,733,869 direct 

distribution of excess net assets to current renewing MMRMA Individual and State Pool 

Members.  The Board also approved the 2023 Net Asset Policy Report, including the results of 

the most recent capital adequacy analysis, which determines the required net asset amount.  This 

will be our seventeenth distribution of excess net assets to current renewing Individual and State 

Pool Members.  With this distribution, MMRMA has distributed $426,951,693 to its renewing 

members since 2006. 

 

This distribution is the largest component of an over $37,000,000 total deployment of excess net 

assets for the benefit of our membership this year.  Examples of other uses of excess net assets 

include:   

 

• Michigan Vehicle Assessments – Excess net assets are used to pay the Michigan 

Catastrophic Claims Association (MCCA) and Michigan Assigned Claims Plan vehicle 

assessments for members.  It is estimated that we will pay $2,753,851 in assessments 

on behalf of the membership. 

 

• Risk Avoidance Program (RAP) Grants – Excess net assets of $1,750,000 are allocated 

to fund RAP Grants. 

 

• Data Breach Coverage – In July 2013, MMRMA began providing Data Breach Coverage 

to all Individual and State Pool Members.  The estimated cost of $1,709,830 for this 

coverage will continue to be supported by excess net assets. 

 

• No-Fault Automobile Coverage – Excess net assets are used to provide members with 

enhanced no-fault automobile coverage.  The estimated value of this enhancement is 

$1,109,126. 

9



 2 

 

• Coverage for Volunteers – Excess net assets are used to pay for volunteer medical claim 

payments up to $25,000 per occurrence. 

 

Once again, this is very good news for members and, based on the distribution rules adopted by 

the Board, members will receive their share of the direct distribution following their membership 

renewal. 

 

MMRMA’s ability to provide these benefits to its members is a direct reflection of strong 

performance results over a sustained period of time.  Many factors contributed to these favorable 

results, including member responsiveness to risk control recommendations, good risk 

management practices by members that resulted in fewer losses, and, most importantly, 

investment performance through June 30, 2022.  However, the most central factor that allows 

MMRMA to deploy excess net assets is the long-term commitment that members have made to 

MMRMA.  Without your loyalty and ongoing support of this fine organization, these benefits would 

not be possible.  Thank you. 

10



Leelanau County
Member Award History

Date Description Grants NAD
1/1/2024 Reported at Renewal

2023 Net Asset Distribution 128,357
9/7/2023 BIS Video Recording Equipment project 19,280

10/9/2023 Staff and Command project 3,055

1/1/2023 Reported at Renewal
2022 Net Asset Distribution 152,781

1/1/2022 Reported at 2022 Renewal
2021 Net Asset Distribution 111,292

12/9/2021 Bola Wrap 500

1/1/2021 Reported at 2021 Renewal
2020 Net Asset Distribution 136,665

7/6/2020 Master Planning Process project 461

1/1/2020 Reported at 2020 Renewal
9/26/2019 Planning & Zoning Essentials training 494

2019 Net Asset Distribution 117,665

1/1/2019 Reported at 2019 Renewal
10/3/2018 Police Staff and Command School 2,625

2018 Net Asset Distribution 130,687

1/1/2018 Reported at 2018 Renewal
10/4/2017 Audiovisual Recording of Interogations project 2,500
8/15/2017 Digital Cameras and Security 41,922

2017 Net Asset Distribution 113,006

1/1/2017 Reported at 2017 Renewal
10/7/2016 Body Camera project 605
5/27/2016 Body Camera project 1,452
4/11/2016 First Line Supervision Training 425

2016 Net Asset Distribution 135,818

1/1/2016 Reported at 2016 Renewal
6/29/2015 Police Staff and Command Training 1,950

2015 Net Asset Distribution 186,196

1/1/2015 Reported at 2015 Renewal
8/1/2014 Redman Suit project 640
7/1/2014 Police Staff and Command School 1,050

4/16/2014 Housing Unit Secuirty Upgrade 5,060
2014 Net Asset Distribution 133,764

1/1/2014 Reported at 2014 Renewal
2013 Net Asset Distribution 95,452

1/1/2013 Reported at 2013 Renewal
2012 Net Asset Distribution 91,973

1/1/2012 Reported at 2012 Renewal
10/18/2011 ILEETA Conference 610
10/18/2011 FBINAA Leadership Potential Seminar 347

8/11/2011 Tasers 6,000
9/23/2011 Michigan Zoning Administrators Certificate Program 500
6/28/2011 Digital Camera and Security Project 3,018
4/13/2011 Citizen Planner Training 1,260

2011 Net Asset Distribution 62,155

1/1/2011 Reported at 2011 Renewal
2010 Net Asset Distribution 23,592

1/27/2010 Tasers 500

Reported Prior to 2010
12/10/2009 ILEETA International Training Conference 690

2009 Advanced Chief & Sheriff's Training 400
2/13/2008 Ready Buckle Restraints 1,000

2008 Net Asset Distribution 40,748
2007 Net Asset Distribution 22,022
2007 American Jail Association Conference 850
2007 Jail Security Cameras 1,098
2006 Jail Classification Training 187
2006 Net Asset Distribution 11,833
2005 160 Hour Corrections Academy 400
2000 In Car Cameras 6,750
2000 Electronic Defibrillator 6,000
1997 Stop Sticks 700

Totals 112,329 1,694,006

11



MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
COVERAGE PROPOSAL

Member:

Date of Original Membership:

Proposal Effective Dates:

Member Representative:

Regional Risk Manager:

Leelanau County

July 1, 1985

January 01, 2024 To January 01, 2025

Deborah Allen

Michigan Municipal Risk Management
Authority

Proposal No: Q000014238

Telephone #:

Telephone #:

(231) 256-9711

(734) 513-0300

A. Introduction

The Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (hereinafter "MMRMA") is created by authority granted by the laws
of the State of Michigan to provide risk financing and risk management services to eligible Michigan local governments.
MMRMA is a separate legal and administrative entity as permitted by Michigan laws. Leelanau County (hereinafter
"Member") is eligible to be a Member of MMRMA. Leelanau County agrees to be a Member of MMRMA and to avail
itself of the benefits of membership.

Leelanau County is aware of and agrees that it will be bound by all of the provisions of the Joint Powers Agreement,
Coverage Documents, MMRMA rules, regulations, and administrative procedures.

This Coverage Proposal summarizes certain obligations of MMRMA and the Member. Except for specific coverage
limits, attached addenda, and the Member's Self Insured Retention (SIR) and deductibles contained in this Coverage
Proposal, the provisions of the Joint Powers Agreement, Coverage Documents, reinsurance agreements, MMRMA
rules, regulations, and administrative procedures shall prevail in any dispute. The Member agrees that any dispute
between the Member and MMRMA will be resolved in the manner stated in the Joint Powers Agreement and MMRMA
rules.

B. Member Obligation - Deductibles and Self Insured Retentions

Leelanau County is responsible to pay all costs, including damages, indemnification, and allocated loss adjustment
expenses for each occurrence that is within the Member's Self Insured Retention (hereinafter the "SIR"). Leelanau
County's SIR and deductibles are as follows:

Leelanau CountyPage 1 of 81/1/24 To 1/1/25 12



Sewage System Overflow

Property and Crime

Vehicle Physical Damage

Liability

N/A

$15,000 Per Vehicle
$30,000 Per Occurrence

Table I

Member Deductibles and Self Insured Retentions

COVERAGE DEDUCTIBLE SELF INSURED
RETENTION

N/A

$1,000 Per Vehicle

$1,000 Per Occurrence

N/A

$75,000 Per Occurrence

N/A

The member must satisfy all deductibles before any payments are made from the Member's SIR or by MMRMA.

The Leelanau County is afforded all coverages provided by MMRMA, except as listed below:

All costs including damages and allocated loss adjustment expenses are on an occurrence basis and must be paid first
from the Member's SIR. The Member's SIR and deductibles must be satisfied fully before MMRMA will be responsible
for any payments. The most MMRMA will pay is the difference between the Member's SIR and the Limits of Coverage
stated in the Coverage Overview.

Leelanau County agrees to maintain the Required Minimum Balance as defined in the Member Financial
Responsibilities section of the MMRMA Governance Manual. The Member agrees to abide by all MMRMA rules,
regulations, and administrative procedures pertaining to the Member's SIR.

C. MMRMA Obligations - Payments and Limits of Coverage

After the Member's SIR and deductibles have been satisfied, MMRMA will be responsible for paying all remaining
costs, including damages, indemnification, and allocated loss adjustment expenses to the Limits of Coverage stated in
Table II. The Limits of Coverage include the Member's SIR payments.

The most MMRMA will pay, under any circumstances, which includes payments from the Member's SIR, per
occurrence, is shown in the Limits of Coverage column in Table II. The Limits of Coverage includes allocated loss
adjustment expenses.

Fire/EMS Replacement Cost N/A N/A

Member's Motor Vehicle Physical Damage deductible applies, unless the amount of the loss exceeds the deductible. If
the amount of loss exceeds the deductible, the loss including deductible amount, will be paid by MMRMA, subject to
the Member's SIR.

1. Sewage System Overflow

2. Specialized Emergency Response Expense Recovery Coverage

3.

4.

Leelanau CountyPage 2 of 81/1/24 To 1/1/25 13



All Members All MembersMember

2,000 per week

Member

Annual Aggregate

Limits of Coverage Per Occurrence Annual Aggregate

N/A N/A1 Liability 15,000,000

Table II

Limits of Coverage

Liability and Motor Vehicle Physical Damage

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Judicial Tenure

Sewage System Overflows

Volunteer Medical Payments

First Aid

Vehicle Physical Damage

Uninsured/Underinsured Motorist Coverage
(per person)

Michigan No-Fault

Terrorism

Member All Members All MembersMember

100,000

0

25,000

2,000

1,500,000

100,000

250,000

Per Statute

5,000,000

Property and Crime

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Buildings and Personal Property

Personal Property in Transit

Unreported Property

Member's Newly Acquired or Constructed Property

Fine Arts

Debris Removal (25% of Insured direct loss plus)

Money and Securities

Accounts Receivable
Fire Protection Vehicles, Emergency Vehicles, and
Mobile Equipment (Per Unit)

Limits of Coverage Per Occurrence

40,098,859

2,000,000

5,000,000

10,000,000

2,000,000

25,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

5,000,000

10

11

14

15

16

17

18

20

21

22

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

0

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

5,000,000

Fire and Emergency Vehicle Rental (12 week limit)

Structures Other Than a Building

Storm or Sanitary Sewer Back-Up

Marine Property

Other Covered Property

Income and Extra Expense

Blanket Employee Fidelity

Earthquake

Flood

Terrorism

15,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

10,000

5,000,000

1,000,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

50,000,000

350,000,000

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

10,000,000

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

50,000,000

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

5,000,000

5,000,000

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

100,000,000

100,000,000

N/A

Uninsured/Underinsured Motorist Coverage
(per occurrence)

19 Faithful Performance Per Statute N/A N/A N/A

12 Dam/Dam Structures/Lake Level Controls 4,765,000 N/A N/A N/A

13 Transformers 0 N/A N/A N/A

Leelanau CountyPage 3 of 81/1/24 To 1/1/25 14



Table III

Network and Information Security Liability, Media Injury Liability, Network Security Loss, Breach Mitigation
Expense, PCI Assessments, Social Engineering Loss, Reward Coverage, Telecommunications Fraud
Reimbursement, Extortion.

Limits of Coverage Per
Occurrence/Claim

$2,000,000

Deductible Per
Occurrence/Claim Retroactive Date

Nework and
Information Security

Liability:
Regulatory Fines:

Coverage A
Each Claim

Included in limit above

Each Claim
Included in limit above

$25,000 Each Claim

Media Injury Liability

Coverage B Each Claim
Included in limit above

$25,000 Each Claim

Network Security Loss

Network Security
Business Interruption

Loss:

Coverage C Each Unauthorized Access
Included in limit above

Each Business Interruption
Loss

Included in limit above

$25,000 Each Unauthorized
Access

Retention Period of
72 hours of Business

Interruptoin Loss

Coverage D

Breach Mitigation
Expense:

Each Unintentional Data
Compromise

Included in limit above

$25,000
Each Unintentional
Data Compromise

Coverage E

PCI Assessments:

Each Payment Card Breach
$1,000,000 Occ./$1,000,000

Agg.
Included in limit above

$25,000 Each Payment Card
Breach

Social Engineering
Loss:

Coverage F Each Social Engineering
Incident

$100,000 Occ./$100,000 Agg
Included in limit above

$25,000
Each Social

Engineering Incident

Coverage G

Reward Coverage

Maximum of 50% of the
Covered Claim or Loss; up

to $25,000
Included in Limit above

Not Applicable

Coverage H

Telecommunications
Fraud Reimbursement

$25,000
Included in limit above Not Applicable

Occurrence

Occurrence

Occurrence

Occurrence

Occurrence

Occurrence

7/1/2013

7/1/2013

Annual Aggregate Limit of Liability

Extortion Coverage

Coverage I Each Claim
Included in limit above

$25,000 Each Extortion Loss Occurrence

Leelanau CountyPage 4 of 81/1/24 To 1/1/25 15



Annual Aggregate Limit of Liability

Each Member Aggregate All Members Aggregate

$2,000,000 $17,500,000

The Each Member Aggregate Limit of Liability for the combined total of all coverage payments of MMRMA and
MCCRMA shall not exceed $2,000,000 per Member for all Subjects of Coverage in any Coverage Period,
regardless of the number of coverage events.

The All Member Aggregate Limit of Liability for the combined total of all coverage payments of MMRMA and
MCCRMA shall not exceed $17,500,000 for All Members for all Subjects of Coverage in any Coverage Period,
regardless of the number of Members or the number of coverage events.

It is the intent of MMRMA that the coverage afforded under the Subjects of Coverage be mutually exclusive.If
however, it is determined that more than one Subject of Coverage applies to one coverage event ensuing from a
common nexus of fact, circumstance, situation, event, transaction, or cause, then the largest of the applicable
Deductibles for the Subjects of Coverage will apply.

Leelanau CountyPage 5 of 81/1/24 To 1/1/25 16



Table V

Table IV

Specialized Emergency Response Expense Recovery Coverage

Limits of Coverage

Specialized Emergency Response
Expense Recovery

Limits of Coverage per Occurrence Annual Aggregate

Member All Members Member All Members

N/A N/A N/A N/A

Specialized Emergency Response Expense Recovery Coverage

Deductibles

Specialized Emergency Response
Expense Recovery

Deductible per Occurrence

Member

N/A

Leelanau CountyPage 6 of 81/1/24 To 1/1/25 17



D. Contribution for MMRMA Participation

Period:

Coverages per Member Coverage Overview: $212,861

TOTAL ANNUAL CONTRIBUTIONS: $249,058

Leelanau County

January 01, 2024 To January 01, 2025

Stop Loss Coverage:

Member Loss Fund Deposit:

$6,197

$30,000

E. List of Addenda
1. Stop Loss Program Participation Agreement

This document is for the purpose of quotation only and does not bind coverage in the Michigan Municipal Risk
Management Authority, unless accepted and signed by both the authorized Member Representative and MMRMA
Representative below.

Accepted By:

Member Representative

Date

MMRMA Representative

Date

MMRMALeelanau County

Proposal No:

Q000014238

Leelanau CountyPage 7 of 81/1/24 To 1/1/25 18



ADDENDUM

STOP LOSS PROGRAM
PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

Optional

The Stop Loss Program limits the Member's cash payments during a July 1 - June 30 year for
those costs falling within the Member's SIR.  The Stop Loss Program responds only to
cumulative Member SIR payments, including damages, indemnification, and allocated loss
adjustment expenses, within a July 1 - June 30 calendar year.  The paid costs include payments
for any coverage provided to the Member by MMRMA provided that the costs are actually paid
within the July 1 - June 30 period.  On July 1 of each year, the Member's paid costs accumulate
from zero.

If the Member has chosen to participate in the Stop Loss Program, and if the Member's paid
costs exceed the member's entry point, the Stop Loss Program will pay, until July 1, all costs that

would, in the absence of the Stop Loss Program, be paid from the Member's SIR. Leelanau
County's entry point is $150,000.  Withdrawing Members do not participate in the Stop Loss
Program after the date of withdrawal.

The Member agrees to be bound by MMRMA rules relating to the Stop Loss Program.

Accepted by:

_______________________________________
                  Member Representative

Date:___________________________________

MMRMA

________________________________________
                  Authorized Representative

Date: ___________________________________

Leelanau CountyPage 8 of 81/1/24 To 1/1/25 19



MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Leelanau County

QUOTE NUMBER Q000014238

SUMMARY OF MOTOR VEHICLE TYPES

EFFECTIVE 1/1/2024  - 1/1/2025

Type of Vehicle
Liability Coverage
Renewal Exposure

Physical Damage Coverage
Renewal Exposure Data

Contribution

Total

All Other Vehicles 0

Buses

EMS/Ambulance

Garbage Trucks

Police - All Other

Police PPT

4

Totals

Service Trucks

Fire Vehicles - Large

Fire Vehicles - Other

Private Passenger

Units Contribution Replacement

0

0

0

0

0

7

20

6

1,468

2,445

9,370

3,279

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

150,000

0

0

0

0

175,000

500,000

120,000

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1,043

0

0

0

0

381

4,351

261

0

0

3,488

0

0

0

0

3,660

13,721

1,729

23,21338 17,112 975,000 0 6,101

Motorcycles 0 0 0 0 0

Commercial - Historical

Motorcycles - Historical

Private Passenger - Historical

Vans

0

0000 00

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

61565030,0005501

ACV Agreed

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

20



MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Leelanau County

QUOTE NUMBER Q000014238

SUMMARY

EFFECTIVE 1/1/2024  - 1/1/2025

N/AN/AN/AN/A 0

Specialized Emergency
Response Expense Recovery
Coverage

25,000
See Table IV2,000,000

Data Breach and Privacy
Liability

Coverage

$150,000
Stop Loss entry point

-3,182

3,182

N/A

37
Total VehiclesMCCA Assessment

MCCA Assessment Discount

1,000$39,098,859$33,605,671

$18,677,929
Exposure Equivalents

$20,903,725
Exposure Equivalents 15,000,000 75,000 38,821Public Officials' Liability 42,879

23
Employee Equivalents

23
Employee Equivalents 15,000,000 75,000 80,593 80,593

75,00015,000,000
$20,903,725
Exposure Equivalents

$18,677,929
Exposure Equivalents

N/A
$0
Replacement Cost

$0
Replacement Cost

15,000
$975,000
ACV

$945,000
ACV

75,00015,000,000
38
Total Vehicles

37
Total Vehicles

Fire/EMS Replacement Cost

SIR/
Deductible

N/A

Proposed Annual
Exposure

Limits of
Liability

Proposed
Contribution

Automobile Liability

Automobile Physical Damage

General Liability

Law Enforcement Liability

Property

Subtotal

N/A

Stop Loss Charge

38
Total Vehicles

Total Contribution without Retention Fund Allocation

Retention Fund Allocation

Total Contribution including Retention Fund Allocation

Total

Sewers N/A

$150,000
Stop Loss entry point

Expiring
Contribution

202,348

202,348

6,086

208,434

30,000

238,434

Expiring Annual
Exposure

0

249,058

30,000

219,058

6,197

212,861

212,861

3,268

-3,268

0

49,229

10,754

0

6,318

16,633

0

17,112

6,101

0

11,455

54,721

0

0

21



MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Member: Leelanau County

QUOTE NUMBER Q000014238

EFFECTIVE DATES 1/1/2024  To 1/1/2025

QUOTE PROPERTY LIST REPORT

Location Address Location Description

8527 East Government Center Drive, Suttons Bay, MI 496821. Government Center

Building Description Building Value Contents Value Total Value

Government Center $15,818,873 $8,086,561 $23,905,434

Law Enforcement Center $11,024,911 $1,227,517 $12,252,428

WWTP Plant $326,021 $14,274 $340,295

Pump/Well House $205,835 $10,380 $216,215

Pole Building $246,588 $97,320 $343,908

Storage Building $4,620 $2,677 $7,297

Location Totals $37,065,577$9,438,729$27,626,848

Location Address Location Description

11750 East Davis Road, Northport, MI 496702. Omena Tower

Building Description Building Value Contents Value Total Value

Omena Control Building & Tower $258,550 $69,350 $327,900

Location Totals $327,900$69,350$258,550

Location Address Location Description

1095 South Pit Road, Lake Leelanau, MI 496533. Central Tower

Building Description Building Value Contents Value Total Value

Central Control Building & Tower $385,700 $78,900 $464,600

Location Totals $464,600$78,900$385,700

Location Address Location Description

9237 South Tower Road, Cedar, MI 496214. Maple City Tower

Building Description Building Value Contents Value Total Value

Maple City Control Building & Tower $166,800 $18,000 $184,800

Location Totals $184,800$18,000$166,800

Location Address Location Description

1397 West Burdickville Road, Maple City, MI 496645. Myles Kimmerly Park

Building Description Building Value Contents Value Total Value

Maintenance Garage $87,721 $67,475 $155,196

Restrooms $66,385 $0 $66,385

Barn 1 $147,814 $0 $147,814

Barn 2 $87,721 $14,175 $101,896

Location Totals $471,291$81,650$389,641

Page 1 of 2

22



Location Address Location Description

8854 South Dunns Farm Road, Maple City, MI 496646. Old Settlers Park

Building Description Building Value Contents Value Total Value

Chapel $154,721 $7,088 $161,809

Service Building $22,744 $8,733 $31,477

Restrooms $55,429 $0 $55,429

Location Totals $248,715$15,821$232,894

Location Address Location Description

3990 S. Maple Valley Rd., Suttons Bay, MI 496827. Veronica Valley County Park

Building Description Building Value Contents Value Total Value

Pole Building $85,650 $61,926 $147,576

Location Totals $147,576$61,926$85,650

Location Address Location Description

11229 Benzonia Trail, Empire, MI 496308. Empire Tower

Building Description Building Value Contents Value Total Value

Empire Tower $64,800 $30,100 $94,900

Location Totals $94,900$30,100$64,800

Location Address Location Description

12708 S. Bugai Road, Traverse City, MI 496849. Elmwood Tower

Building Description Building Value Contents Value Total Value

Elmwood Tower $48,500 $8,500 $57,000

Location Totals $57,000$8,500$48,500

Location Address Location Description

3507 N. Putnam Road, Peshawbestown, MI 4986210. Peshawbestown Tower

Building Description Building Value Contents Value Total Value

Peshawbestown Tower $28,000 $8,500 $36,500

Location Totals $36,500$8,500$28,000

Building Value Contents Value Total Value

$29,287,383 $9,811,476 $39,098,859

Grand Totals

Page 2 of 2

23



Scheduled Vehicles
Year Make Model VIN License Plate Type Department

2011 Dodge Grand Caravan 2D4RN3DG9BR650121 45009 Police - All Other Police

2006 Chevrolet Silverado 1GCHK23U66F239825 45010 Police - All Other Police

2011 Ford Expedition 1FMJU1G58BEF24319 45029 Police - All Other Police

2017 Ford F150 1FTFX1EF2HKC56309 45030 Police - All Other Police

2019 Ford Escape 1FMCU9GD0KUB31810 SUPPRES Police - All Other Police

2023 Ford Police 1FTFW1P86PKD95939 EPS0389 Police - All Other Police

2018 Ford Police 1FM5K8AR1JGA46372 45003 Police - All Other Police

2022 Ford Explorer/Police 1FM5K8AB3NGA58208 45020 Police PPT Police

2022 Ford Explorer/Police 1FM5K8AB0NGA56576 45026 Police PPT Police

2022 Ford Explorer/Police 1FM5K8AB2NGA57129 45017 Police PPT Police

2020 Ford Police 1FM5K8AB9LGC63822 45001 Police PPT Police

2020 Ford Police 1FM5K8AB9LGC63823 45023 Police PPT Police

2020 Ford Explorer PI 1FM5K8AB9LGC63824 45024 Police PPT Police

2020 Ford Explorer PI 1FM5K8AB9LGC63825 45005 Police PPT Police

2018 Ford Police 1FM5K8AR3JGA46373 45028 Police PPT Police

2018 Ford Police 1FM5K8ARXJGA46371 45002 Police PPT Police

2017 Ford Explorer PI 1FM5K8AR6HGC68044 45027 Police PPT Police

2017 Ford Explorer PI 1FM5K8AR7HGB93483 45028 Police PPT Police

2019 Ford Explorer PI 1FM5K8AR6KGB44637 45008 Police PPT Police

2019 Ford Explorer PI 1FM5K8AR2KGB44635 45025 Police PPT Police

2019 Ford Explorer PI 1FM5K8AR4KGB44636 45004 Police PPT Police

2016 Ford Police 1FM5K8AR9GGB97436 45018 Police PPT Police

2021 Ford Explorer PI 1FM5K8AB7MGA96459 45021 Police PPT Police

2021 Ford Explorer PI 1FM5K8AB7MGA96458 45011 Police PPT Police

2021 Ford Explorer PI 1FM5K8AB7MGA96457 45007 Police PPT Police

2023 Ford Police 1FM5K8ABXPGB37510 45006 Police PPT Police

2023 Ford Police 1FM5K8AB3PGB38076 45022 Police PPT Police

2022 Ford Ranger 4x4 1FTER1FH9NLD25539 093x526 Private Passenger N/A

2022 Ford Ranger 4x4 1FTER1FH9NLD24911 115x259 Private Passenger N/A

2016 Ford Escape 1FMCU9GX1GUB75137 093x529 Private Passenger Building & Grounds

2015 Ford Escape 1FMCU9GX0FUC59805 093X523 Private Passenger Building & Grounds

2014 Ford Explorer PI 1FM5K8AR1EGB63777 115x257 Private Passenger Commission on Aging

2015 Ford Explorer PI 1FM5K8AR9FGB91666 093x520 Private Passenger Emergency Management

2015 Chevrolet Silverado 1GC0KUEG8FZ533208 093X534 Service Trucks Building & Grounds

2012 Chevrolet Silverado 1GC0KVCG0CZ220190 093x525 Service Trucks Building & Grounds

2009 Ford F150XL 1FTPX14V49FB25096 093x531 Service Trucks Drain Commission

2022 Chevrolet 2500HD 1GC3YLE71NF225111 123x068 Service Trucks Building & Grounds

2001 Ford Econoline 1FDXE45F11HA32118 093x519 Vans Emergency Management

Summary

QUOTE NUMBER Q000014238

QUOTE AUTO SCHEDULE REPORT

EFFECTIVE DATES 1/1/2024 To 1/1/2025

MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Page 1 of 2

24



All Other Vehicles

Buses

Commercial - Historical

EMS/Ambulance

Fire Vehicles Large

Fire Vehicles - Other

Garbage Trucks

Motorcycles

Motorcycles - Historical

Police - All Other

Police PPT

Private Passenger

Private Passenger - Historical

Service Trucks

Vans

Vehicle Group

0 Vehicles

0 Vehicles

0 Vehicles

0 Vehicles

0 Vehicles

0 Vehicles

0 Vehicles

0 Vehicles

0 Vehicles

7 Vehicles

20 Vehicles

6 Vehicles

0 Vehicles

4 Vehicles

1 Vehicles

Vehicles

Grand Totals

38 Vehicles

Vehicles

QUOTE NUMBER Q000014238

QUOTE AUTO SCHEDULE REPORT

EFFECTIVE DATES 1/1/2024 To 1/1/2025

MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Page 2 of 2

25



MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Member: Leelanau County

QUOTE NUMBER Q000014238

EFFECTIVE DATES 1/1/2024  To 1/1/2025

QUOTE DAM/DAM STRUCTURE/LAKE LEVEL CONTROL STRUCTURES REPORT

Location / Description ValueAddress City State Zip Code

Leland Dam $4,600,000109 W River St Leland MI 49654

Leland Dam Control
Room

$165,000109 W River St Leland MI 49654

Total Value

$4,765,000

Grand Totals

Page 1 of 1

26



MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Member: Leelanau County

QUOTE NUMBER Q000014238

EFFECTIVE DATES 1/1/2024  To 1/1/2025

QUOTE STRUCTURES OTHER THAN A BUILDING (SOTB) LIST REPORT

Location / Description Value

Leelanau Township (Northport) Tower $213,300

Total Value

$213,300

Grand Totals

Page 1 of 1

27



28



Catholic Human Services Up North Prevention 
Sharon Vreeland, Prevention Specialist - Leelanau 

svreeland@catholichumanserivices.org 
Phone (231) 649-8334 

 
 

 
November 28, 2023 
 
Leelanau Board of Commissioners 
8527 E. Government Center Drive 
Suttons Bay, MI 49682 
 
Re: Transfer of Fiduciary Responsibilities for 2023 Prevention Network Grant 
 And/or 
 Approval to distribute Request for Proposals for Branding/Prevention Messaging 

for the Leelanau County Substance Misuse Prevention Coalition (LCSMPC) 
 
Esteemed Commissioners, 

 
Thank you for placing this request on your meeting agenda on short notice. This request consists 
of two parts. 
 
Request #1: Approve termination of existing grant from Prevention Network pursuant to 
receipt of an acceptable termination letter rescinding the grant contract and releasing 
Leelanau County from further reporting responsibility. 
 
On April 18, 2023 Chairman Wessell entered into the attached contract with the Prevention 
Network committing the County to serve as fiduciary for the LCSMPC/LIFT as a sub-recipient of 
a federal grant. The purpose of the grant is to conduct substance abuse prevention activities in 
Leelanau County. The period of this grant is March 1, 2023 through March 5, 2024.  
 
On June 26, 2023, County Administrator Deb Allen, Interim Finance Director Cathy Hartesvelt, 
LIFT Executive Director Bekah TenBrink, LIFT Associate Director Audrey Sharp, and I met to 
discuss various matters related to the LCSMPC. At that meeting it was expressed that the County 
would prefer to be relieved of the fiscal and functional liabilities and responsibilities for being the 
grant fiduciary. Likewise, LIFT leadership would be able to expend the grant funds more nimbly 
without needing to schedule approvals at BOC meetings. As the Catholic Human Services Up North 
Prevention (CHS-UNP) Prevention Specialist assigned to Leelanau County, also the designated 
Prevention Specialist for this grant application, I offered to see if CHS-UNP could facilitate a good 
outcome for all parties by becoming the new fiduciary for this grant. 
 
As demonstrated by the attached emails which include Kara Steinke, Program Manager with CHS-
UNP, and Ruth Schwendinger, Program Director for Prevention Network (the sub-grantmaker), 
both parties are willing to assist.  
 
If you adopt a motion to terminate the current grant contract with Prevention Network, either the 
county or I can forward the minutes of the meeting to Ruth. She can draft a formal termination letter 
that will specifically clear the County of any reporting responsibility after the termination. LIFT 
and CHS-UNP would execute an agreement for fiduciary services. Then a new grant agreement 
would be issued between Prevention Network and CHS-UNP. LIFT and CHS would assume all 
future reporting and other responsibilities thenceforth.  
 
  

29



Request #2: Approve distribution of Request for Proposals to provide branding and 
prevention messaging services to the LCSMPC using Prevention Network Grant Funds.  
 
This part of the request is a “belt and suspenders” measure for the Board’s consideration. 
 
In the grant application LIFT specified that some of the funds would be used to create a recognizable 
and relatable brand identity to enhance the LCSMPC’s effectiveness, along with some help creating 
effective prevention messaging for the community.  
 
The coalition membership has created the attached RFP detailing the project scope and seeking 
bids. We had been waiting to send it out until the potential change in grant fiduciary was resolved. 
The grant expires on March 5, 2024 and we are feeling a sense of urgency to distribute the RFP, 
receive bids back, and get the work underway within the timeframe for which the grant funds can 
pay the costs as anticipated.  
 
Assuming the BOC adopts the necessary motion outlined above, time will still be needed to 
exchange paperwork and finalize the details. To get the RFP process moving along so we can 
effectively spend the grant funds for their intended purpose, we are asking if it would make sense 
for the BOC, as current fiduciary, to consider a motion approving RFP distribution.  
 
 
Thank you for your consideration. I plan to attend the meeting, along with Bekah TenBrink and 
Audrey Sharp, to answer any questions you may have.  

 
Sincerely, 

 
 
Sharon E. Vreeland, Prevention Specialist 
Catholic Human Services Up North Prevention 
 
CC: Bekah TenBrink, LIFT 
 Audrey Sharp, LIFT 
 Kara Steinke, CHS-UNP 
 Ruth Schwendinger, Prevention Network 

30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



02LURH12

40



1

Sharon Vreeland

From: Kara Steinke
Sent: Monday, June 26, 2023 3:26 PM
To: Sharon Vreeland
Cc: RuthS@preventionnetwork.org; Audrey Sharp; Bekah TenBrink
Subject: Re: Leelanau County Substance Misuse Prevention Coalition Grant

Pleasure to meet you all. This is something we can definitely work through. We are in the middle of finalizing a sizable 
amount of audits and contracts this week and the next. I did preliminarily mention this to Ruth and she thought a letter 
requesting we take over as the fiduciary would be enough. If there’s something else you need, draft it up and I will send 
in for review in our end if possible. I would not be able to tackle this until week of July 10th, which really is not that far 
away.  

Sent from my iPhone 
 
 

On Jun 26, 2023, at 3:20 PM, Sharon Vreeland <svreeland@catholichumanservices.org> wrote: 

  
Hello all! 
 
Audrey and Bekah, of course you know Ruth but I don't think you know Kara Steinke. She is a Program 
Manager with Catholic Human Services...keeps all the paperwork in line! Kara, Bekah TenBrink is the 
Executive Director and Founder of Leelanau Investing for Teens (LIFT) and Audrey Sharp is the Associate 
Director. They are contracted to Leelanau County to coordinate the Leelanau County Substance Misuse 
Prevention Coalition among many other wonderful things. 
 
So...we just had a meeting with Leelanau County Administrator Deb Allen and Finance Department 
Assistant Director Cathy Hartesveldt. We mutually agree that having the county as the official fiduciary 
for the Prevention Network Grant that LIFT holds is unwieldy for all parties. We would like Catholic 
Human Services to assume the fiduciary role for the grant ASAP. 
 
To accomplish this, Leelanau County is requesting a document to formalize the transition that all parties 
can sign. They would adore it if the document specified that with the transition the county is officially 
relieved of any future reporting responsibilities (which I believe Audrey is pretty much doing anyway....) 
 
They would like CHS and/or Prevention Network to provide the first draft that they can run by their legal 
team and then take to the board for official approval before everyone signs. Ruth and Kara, how shall 
we proceed? 
 
Thanks! This is going to be cool! 
 
For Kara....we went into the meeting thinking that we would also ask that the County switch from 
contracting directly with LIFT to coordinate the LCSMPC, which was operating as essentially a county 
committee, to contracting with CHS to provide/oversee the coalition services. Then CHS would bill the 
County quarterly for the amount the Board budgets (currently $30,000). There's now a thought that this 
might run through the Leelanau County Family Coordinating Council instead (LCFCC). While having all 
the coalition money with you is appealing for obvious reasons, there a couple of reasons the county reps 
thought asking for it to run through LCFCC might appeal to the Board of Commissioners, in no particular 

41



2

order: 1: the LCFCC fiduciary is United Way. Their currenty fiduciary fee to us is 1%, as opposed to the 
certainly reasonable 10% CHS charges; 2: The BOC is currently already contracting with LCFCC to provide 
a variety of services, one of which is that LCFCC coordinated liquor tax grant ask we just had to amend 
last week...so it would be part of an existing relationship as opposed to a new contract between the 
county and CHS. Bekah and Audrey are mulling over which way they would prefer. Either way I'm likely 
to be facilitating the actual movements of money. Since I have to submit my 2024 county budget 
request next week this decision will happen quite fast and we'll let you know what to expect! Either way 
it should be much less red tape to actually spend the money! 
 
Thanks all. Holler with questions! 
Sharon 
 
Sharon E. Vreeland, Prevention Specialist 
Catholic Human Services 
Svreeland@catholichumanservices.org 
231-649-8334 

42



  
    

1 
 

 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) 
COALITION BRANDING AND ADVERTISING/AWARENESS/PSA CAMPAIGN 

 
 
 
 

LEELANAU COUNTY SUBSTANCE MISUSE PREVENTION COALITION 
201 W. BROADWAY 

SUTTONS BAY, MI 49682 
 
 
 

AUGUST 11, 2023 
  

43



  
    

2 
 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
1. SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND ................................................................................................. 3 
2. PROPOSAL GUIDELINES ............................................................................................................ 3 
3. PROJECT PURPOSE AND DESCRIPTION ....................................................................................... 3 
4. REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL AND PROJECT TIMELINE ................................................................... 4 
5. BUDGET .................................................................................................................................... 5 
6. BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS ......................................................................................................... 5 
7. PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA ........................................................................................... 5 
8. QUESTIONS AND SUBMISSION ................................................................................................... 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

44



  
    

3 
 

1. SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
The Leelanau County Substance Misuse Prevention Coaliiton (LCSMPC) seeks proposals to 
develop coalition branding (logo, possibly new name), and content for a multi-media 
general public awareness campaign to build awareness of the coalition, deter substance 
misuse and/or dependence and encourage healthy lifestyles.  
 
The purpose of this Request for Proposal (RFP) is to solicit proposals from various 
communications and marketing firms, conduct a fair and extensive evaluation based on 
criteria listed herein, and select the candidate who can best meet the needs of the LCSMPC.  
 
The LCSMPC was created by the Leelanau County Board of Commissioners in 2017. It is an 
unincorporated coalition comprised of government officials, medical providers, law 
enforcement and court personnel, substance misuse prevention professionals and 
interested county residents. We promote mindful use of legal intoxicants by adults, 
abstinence by youth, harm reduction strategies for people experiencing SUD, reduction of 
stigma about SUD and obtaining physical and mental health treatment, awareness of 
Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs), and participating with other community members in 
healthy activities that promote resilience and reduce the likelihood of substance misuse. 

 
2. PROPOSAL GUIDELINES 

This Request for Proposal represents the requirements for an open and competitive 
process.  Proposals will be accepted until DATE AND TIME.  Any proposals received after this 
date and time will be returned to the sender.  All proposals must be signed by an official 
agent or representative of the company submitting the proposal. 
 
If the organization submitting a proposal must outsource or contract any work to meet the 
requirements contained herein, this must be clearly stated in the proposal.  Additionally, all 
costs included in proposals must be all-inclusive to include any outsourced or contracted 
work.  Any proposals which call for outsourcing or contracting work must include a name 
and description of the organizations being contracted.   
 
All costs must be itemized to include an explanation of all fees and costs.   
 
Contract terms and conditions will be negotiated upon selection of the winning bidder for 
this RFP.  All contractual terms and conditions will be subject to review by the LCSMPC 
steering committee and the coalition’s fiduciary (currently Leelanau County; may at the 
time of selection become Catholic Human Services) for the grant funding the project. (DOES 
RUTH/PREVENTION NETWORK ALSO HAVE TO BE CONSULTED?) and will include scope, 
budget, schedule, and other necessary items pertaining to the project. 
 

3. PROJECT PURPOSE AND DESCRIPTION 
The purpose of this project is as follows: 
LCSMPC seeks to build community awareness of and participation in our coalition and the 
programming we provide. We seek to educate the general public about avoiding 

45



  
    

4 
 

SUD/appropriate legal intoxicant use, seeking help, reducing stigma, and healthy lifestyle 
choices. 
 
We need a strong brand identity. We need a logo and are seeking professional advice about 
our coalition name. The current name is long, and both name and initials are challenging to 
say and remember. A new name would reflect our mission to promote individual and 
community health in ways that support prevention of and recovery from SUD.  

 
Project Description: 
Working with our chosen provider, and within the scope of available funding, the LCSMPC 
will: 

• develop a logo; 

• explore possible selection of a new name that appropriately and memorably 
conveys our mission and vision;  

• develop messaging and imagery for a multi-media public service announcement and 
coalition awareness campaign promoting one or more of the following: healthy 
lifestyles and alternatives to substance misuse, abstinence for youth, mindful use of 
legal intoxicants for adults; promotion of harm reduction strategies, and reduction 
of stigma regarding people experiencing SUDs; 

• develop a media campaign plan and budget that will be at least partially executed by 
the end of the project period.  

4. REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL AND PROJECT TIMELINE 
Request for Proposal Timeline: 

• Proposals in response to this RFP are due no later than DATE AND TIME. 

• Proposals will be evaluated from DATE until DATE.  Bidder(s) will be contacted for 
additional information or discussions as needed during this two-week window.  

• Winning bidder will be selected no later than DATE. 

• Upon notification, the contract negotiation with the winning bidder will begin 
immediately and be completed by DATE. 

• Bidders not selected will be notified by DATE. 

 
Project Timeline: 
Project initiation phase must be completed by DATE. Branding, launch strategy, and content 
development will be completed by DATE. The entire project will be completed by February 
28. 2024.  
 

46



  
    

5 
 

5. BUDGET 
All proposals must include proposed costs to complete the tasks described in the project 
description. All costs and fees must be clearly described in each proposal. 
 

6. BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS 
Bidders should provide the following items as part of their proposal for consideration: 

• Description of experience related to this project request 
• List of how many full time, part time, and contractor staff in your organization that 

would be working on this project 
• Anticipated resources you will assign to this project (total number, role, title, 

experience) 
• How research will be conducted to determine results 
• Timeframe for completion of the project 
• Project management methodology 

 
7. PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA 

The LCSMPC will evaluate all proposals based on the following criteria.  To ensure 
consideration for this Request for Proposal, your proposal should be complete and include 
all of the following criteria: 

• Overall proposal must meet the scope and needs included herein and be presented 
in a clear and organized manner 

• Organizational Experience: Bidders will be evaluated on their experience as it 
pertains to the scope of this project 

• Previous work: Bidders will be evaluated on examples of their work pertaining to 
media campaigns as well as client testimonials and references 

• Value and cost: Bidders will be evaluated on the cost of their solution(s) based on 
the work to be performed in accordance with the scope of this project 

• Technical expertise and experience: Bidders must provide descriptions and 
documentation of staff technical expertise and experience 

 
8. QUESTIONS AND SUBMISSION 

Each bidder must submit their proposal in the form of a PDF attachment to an email to the 
address below by DATE AND TIME:  
 
Audrey Sharp, Co-Coordinator 
Leelanau County Substance Misuse Prevention Coalition 
audsharp@thecentersb.com 
 
Any questions about this RFP and proposal submission may be directed to Ms. Sharp at the 
above email address. 

47

mailto:audsharp@thecentersb.com


Leelanau County Substance Misuse Prevention Coalition
Evaluation of Bids - Branding and PSA Campaign RFP

Quality Functional Deployment Model to Pop 
Scoring
Same Table using 1, 3, 9 scoring model. 1 = low, 3 = med, 9 = high
Scored by:

Proposal Evaluation Criteria Weighting Score 1,3,9 Total #1 Score 1,3,9 Total #1 Score 1,3,9 Total #1
Proposal meets the scope and needs defined in 
the RFP and are presented in a clear and organized 
manner 15 0 0 0
Organizational Experience: Experience as it 
pertains to the scope of this project 20 0 0 0
Previous work: Examples of their work pertaining 
to media campaigns as well as client testimonials 
and references 20 0 0 0

Value and cost: The cost of bidders solution(s) 
based on the work to be performed in accordance 
with the scope of this project

30 0 0 0
Technical resources: Descriptions and 
documentation of staff technical expertise and 
technical resources available 15 0 0 0
Total 100 0 0 0

Bidder 1 Bidder 2 Bidder 3

48



Department Approval: __________________________________________ Date: ____________________________  

EXECUTIVE DOCUMENT SUMMARY 
Department: ___________________________________ 

Contact Person: ________________________________ 

Telephone Number: _____________________________ 

Submittal Dates 

Select Meeting Type: _________________________

Date of Meeting: ______________________________

Financial/Source Selection Method 
Vendor: ______________________________________ 

Address/ 
Phone: 

 ____________________________________________ 

Select One: __________________________________

Other: _____________________________________

Account No.: __________________________________

CIP Project?

If Grant, Match Account No.: ________________________

Budgeted Amount: ____________________________  Contracted Amount: _______________________________ 

Document Description 

Request to Waive Board Policy on Bid Requirements Department Head/Elected Official Authorization 

Suggested Recommendation: 

Undersheriff J. Kiessel
231-256-8602 12/05/2023

Donation
101.000.000.674.005

$ 0.00 $ 0.00

In 2022 and 2023, the Sheriff's Office held the first two K-9 Golf Outings to benefit and maintain the K-9
Program at the Leelanau County Sheriff's Office. These outings were respectively held at Bahle Farms and
Sugar Loaf, the old course, and combined, they helped the Sheriff's Office in raising just over $35,000.00.
Those funds have been used to maintain our current K-9, Klouse, and his handler, Corporal Ryan Lott,
along with funding the purchase of a second K-9, Keno. K-9 Keno will be acquired this month with training
scheduled with his new handler Deputy Ryan Strope in January 2024.

In 2013, the Sheriff's Office re-instituted a K-9 program within the agency that provided a dog with
capabilities such as narcotics detection, article searches, handler protection and search and rescue. The
dog and its care was almost fully funded via public donations. In 2021, the first dog, Nico, was retired and
replaced by the current dog, Klouse. Replacement animals run on average $15-20,000.00, when taking into
account the training and orientation of new handlers. Care and upkeep of the animals, to include vet bills,
can run into thousands of dollars on an annual basis. Maintaining a suitable K-9 fund balance strictly funded
via unsolicited donations is becoming more difficult. Holding a fundraiser of this nature has proven to be
very successful and popular.

Similar to the past couple of years, a golf outing would be held on a weekday in early June with the
cooperation of a local golf course. This year, Manitou Passage has tentatively agreed to assist in hosting
the event. Any and all expenses and proceeds would be tracked through the K-9 donation account within
the Sheriff's Office budget and in conjunction with both the Finance and Treasurer's Offices.

Sheriff's Office
Executive Board

I move to recommend that the County Board of Commissioners approve and allow the Leelanau County
Sheriff's Office to hold a charity golf outing in 2024 to benefit and maintain the K-9 program.

Undersheriff James C. Kiessel Digitally signed by Undersheriff James C. Kiessel 
Date: 2023.11.27 14:20:31 -05'00'

✔

✔

✔

Select One

Donation AcceptanceDescription:

11/27/2023
49



Department Approval: __________________________________________ Date: ____________________________  

EXECUTIVE DOCUMENT SUMMARY 
Department: ___________________________________ 

Contact Person: ________________________________ 

Telephone Number: _____________________________ 

Submittal Dates 

Select Meeting Type: _________________________

Date of Meeting: ______________________________

Financial/Source Selection Method 
Vendor: ______________________________________ 

Address/ 
Phone: 

 ____________________________________________ 

Select One: __________________________________

Other: _____________________________________

Account No.: __________________________________

CIP Project?

If Grant, Match Account No.: ________________________

Budgeted Amount: ____________________________  Contracted Amount: _______________________________ 

Document Description 

Request to Waive Board Policy on Bid Requirements Department Head/Elected Official Authorization 

Suggested Recommendation: 

Darcy Weaver
(231) 256-8114 12/05/2023

C&M Insurance / BCBS of Michigan

Lew Wolters of C&M Insurance will be present to give an update on the 2023 Blue Cross/Blue Shield plan
year and present the contract renewal for 2024.

Human Resources
Executive Board

I move to recommend that the County Board of Commissioners waive bid policy and approve the contract
renewal with Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Michigan for 2024. Funds to come from the Insurance Fund 677.

Darcy Weaver Digitally signed by Darcy Weaver 
Date: 2023.11.27 12:38:47 -05'00'

✔

✔

✔

Negotiated

ContractDescription:

11/27/2023
50



Department Approval: __________________________________________ Date: ____________________________  

EXECUTIVE DOCUMENT SUMMARY 
Department: ___________________________________ 

Contact Person: ________________________________ 

Telephone Number: _____________________________ 

Submittal Dates 

Select Meeting Type: _________________________

Date of Meeting: ______________________________

Financial/Source Selection Method 
Vendor: ______________________________________ 

Address/ 
Phone: 

 ____________________________________________ 

Select One: __________________________________

Other: _____________________________________

Account No.: __________________________________

CIP Project?

If Grant, Match Account No.: ________________________

Budgeted Amount: ____________________________  Contracted Amount: _______________________________ 

Document Description 

Request to Waive Board Policy on Bid Requirements Department Head/Elected Official Authorization 

Suggested Recommendation: 

Darcy Weaver
(231) 256-8114 12/05/2023

C&M Insurance / BCBS of Michigan

Lew Wolters of C&M Insurance will be present to give an update on the 2023 Blue Cross/Blue Shield plan
year and present the contract renewal for 2024.

C&M Insurance is requesting an increase in the monthly fee for administration of the County's Blue
Cross/Blue Shield healthcare plan.

Human Resources
Executive Board

I move to recommend that the County Board of Commissioners to approve an increase from $4,170.00 to
$________ as the monthly fee to C&M Insurance for the administration of the County's Blue Cross/Blue
Shield healthcare plan. This is a total increase of $________ per month. Funds to come from the Insurance
Fund 677.000.000.718.104.

Darcy Weaver Digitally signed by Darcy Weaver 
Date: 2023.11.27 12:38:47 -05'00'

✔

✔

✔

Negotiated

ContractDescription:

11/27/2023
51



EXECUTIVE DOCUMENT SUMMARY 

Probate/Family Court B 
Submittal Dates 

Department: 

contact Person: Hon. Marian Kromkowski � Executive Board: 12/05/2023

Telephone No.: 231-256-9803 � Regular Session: 12/12/2023

Source Selection Method 

B 
VENDOR: Ottawa County 

� Negotiated 

D Other: Address/ 

Account Number 
Phone: 

(Funds to come from): 

Budgeted Amount: $ 0.00 Contracted Amount: $ 0.00 

Document Description 

� Professional Service [:] Oother 

D Request to Waive Board Policy on Bid Requirements

This is a proposed agreement between Leelanau County, the 13th Judicial Circuit-Family 
Division, Ottawa County and the 20th Judicial Circuit Court for detention bed rental and 
residential treatment services. 

Proposed per diem rates are $290.00 for detention services and $340.00 for the treatment 
program. These amounts are reimbursed by the State at 50% for youth under the age 17, and 
100% for 17-year-olds. 

The proposed agreement has been forwarded to counsel for review. 

I move to recommend that the County Board of Commissioners approve the 
Suggested Ottawa County Juvenile Detention Center Bed Rental Agreement between 
Recommendation: Leelanau County, the 13th Judicial Circuit Court, and Ottawa County, the 20th 

Judicial Circuit Court, and the Ottawa County Juvenile Detention Center, as 
presented, pending counsel review and approval. 

Department Head Approval: -�1 � ��q__o_· 12/05/2023 �· Date: ________ _ 52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AS-NEEDED CONSULTING AND ENGINEERING 
SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
FOR 

 
GENERAL DRAIN      CONSULTING 

BETWEEN 

COUNTY OF LEELANAU 
 

FOR 
 

LEELANAU COUNTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER 

AND 

GEI CONSULTANTS OF MICHIGAN, P.C. FOR 

JANUARY 1, 2024 TO DECEMBER 31, 2024 

61



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 

1. Scope of Services and Right to Entry ............................................................................. 1 

2. Title to Records and Documents ..................................................................................... 1 

3. ENGINEER's Contact Person ......................................................................................... 2 

4. Opinions of Cost .............................................................................................................. 2 

5. Compensation.................................................................................................................. 2 

6. Time Period for Performance of Required Services and Termination of Agreement ....... 2 

7. Standard of Care ............................................................................................................. 3 

8. Nondiscrimination ............................................................................................................ 3 

9. Compliance with the Law ................................................................................................. 3 

10. Applicable Law and Venue ............................................................................................... 3 

11. Independent Contractor ................................................................................................... 4 

12. Indemnification and Hold Harmless ................................................................................. 4 

13. Liability Insurance ............................................................................................................ 4 

14. Government Function ...................................................................................................... 4 

15. Third Parties.....................................................................................................................5 

16. Assignment or Subcontracting .........................................................................................5 

17. Modification of Agreement. ..............................................................................................5 

18. Waivers ........................................................................................................................... 5 

19. Purpose of Section Titles ................................................................................................. 5 

20. Complete Agreement ...................................................................................................... 5 

21. Binding Effect of the Agreement...................................................................................... 5 

62



22. Invalid/Unenforceable Provisions ..................................................................................... 5 

23. Surviving Provisions ........................................................................................................ 6 

24. Certification of Authority to Sign Agreement ..................................................................... 6 

 

EXHIBIT A – Engineer's 2024 Michigan Drain Fee Schedule 

EXHIBIT B - Leelanau County Board of Commissioners' Policy on Insurance Requirements 

63



AS-NEEDED CONSULTING AND ENGINEERING 
SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, effective January 1, 2024, is made and entered into by and between 
the COUNTY OF LEELANAU, a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of 
Michigan (hereinafter referred to as the "COUNTY") acting on behalf of the LEELANAU COUNTY 
DRAIN COMMISSIONER, whose office is located at 8527 E. Government Center Drive, Suite 
205, Suttons Bay, Michigan 49682 (hereinafter referred to as the "DRAIN COMMISSIONER"), and 
GEI CONSULTANTS OF MICHIGAN, P.C., with offices at 401 S. Washington Square, Suite 
#103, Lansing, Michigan 48933 and at 4472 Mt. Hope Rd., Williamsburg, Michigan 49690 
(hereinafter referred to as the "ENGINEER"). 

 
RECITALS: 

 
WHEREAS, the DRAIN COMMISSIONER requires from time to time general consulting 

and engineering services to investigate, review, and discuss drainage issues as situations arise 
prior to a County Drain being petitioned or established; and 

 
WHEREAS, the ENGINEER has provided the DRAIN COMMISSIONER such services in 

the past and has agreed to continue to provide the professional as-needed consulting and 
engineering services which the DRAIN COMMISSIONER requires; and 

 
WHEREAS, the COUNTY accepts the ENGINEER'S proposal subject to the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter 
contained, IT IS HEREBY AGREED, as follows: 

 
1. Scope of Services and Right to Entry. The ENGINEER shall provide the 

COUNTY with the as-needed consulting and engineering services to investigate, review, and 
discuss drainage issues with the DRAIN COMMISSIONER as situations arise prior to a County 
Drain being petitioned or established. 

 
The DRAIN COMMISSIONER shall provide for ENGINEER's right to enter from time to time 

property owned by others so that ENGINEER may perform the services required by this 
Agreement on the DRAIN COMMISSIONER's behalf. 

 
2. Title to Records and Documents. The DRAIN COMMISSIONER shall have the 

sole and exclusive right, title and ownership to any and all reports, boring logs, field data, field 
notes, laboratory test data, calculations, estimates, specifications, drawings and instruments of 
service and electronic data prepared for or pertaining to the services to be performed and 
products to be produced by the ENGINEER under this Agreement. The ENGINEER may retain 
reproducible copies of all such materials. 

 
 

Page 1 of 6 
64



3. ENGINEER's Contact Person. The ENGINEER shall assign a main point of 
contact as selected by the DRAIN COMMISSIONER.  For the purposes of this contract, Brian 
J. Cenci, P.E. shall be the DRAIN COMMISSIONER's main point of contact with the ENGINEER. 

 
4. Opinions of Cost. Since ENGINEER has no control over the cost of labor, 

materials, equipment or services furnished by others or over market conditions or contractors' 
methods of determining their prices, ENGINEER's opinions of probable Total Project Costs or 
Construction Costs shall represent the ENGINEER's best judgment as an experienced and 
qualified professional engineer, familiar with the construction industry, but ENGINEER shall not be 
construed as having given any guarantees that proposals, bids or actual costs will not vary from 
opinions, evaluations or studies submitted by the ENGINEER to the DRAIN COMMISSIONER. 

 
5. Compensation. The fees and costs that the ENGINEER may bill to the DRAIN 

COMMISSIONER for the services and deliverables provided under this Agreement shall not 
exceed those set forth in the attached FEE SCHEDULE labeled Exhibit A. The attached Exhibit A 
- 2023 MICHIGAN DRAIN FEE SCHEDULE is incorporated by reference into this Agreement and 
is made a part thereof. It is expressly understood and agreed that the total sum to be paid the 
ENGINEER under this Agreement shall not exceed the sum of TEN - THOUSAND AND NO/100 
DOLLARS ($10,000.00). 

 
The COUNTY shall pay the ENGINEER for services performed in accordance with the 

rates and charges listed in the attached Exhibit A- FEE SCHEDULE. Invoices shall be submitted 
by the ENGINEER to the DRAIN COMMISSIONER from time to time, but no more frequently than 
once a month. The ENGINEER shall be paid the sum invoiced within thirty (30) days of the date 
the DRAIN COMMISSIONER received ENGINEER'S invoice. If the COUNTY and/or DRAIN 
COMMISSIONER objects to all or any part of an invoice, the DRAIN COMMISSIONER shall notify 
the ENGINEER within fourteen (14) calendar days of its receipt of the invoice, identify the cause 
of disagreement, and pay when due that portion of the invoice not in dispute. It is expressly 
understood and agreed that the total sum to be paid the ENGINEER under this Agreement shall 
not exceed the sum stated in the first paragraph of this Section 5. 

 
6. Time Period for Performance of Required Services and Termination of 

Agreement. This Agreement shall become effective on January 1, 2024 (hereinafter referred to 
as the "Effective Date"), and unless prematurely terminated as authorized in this Agreement, shall 
remain in effect until December 31, 2024. 

 
It is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto that all obligations of the 

ENGINEER set forth in this Agreement which extend to beyond the completion date of the work 
shall survive said completion and remain in full force and effect for the time set for the 
performance of said obligations. 

 
This Agreement may be terminated at any time, with or without cause, by either the 

COUNTY or the ENGINEER upon thirty (7) calendar days prior written notice to the other party. 
 

The DRAIN COMMISSIONER, at his option may obtain and/or retain the work product 
produced by the ENGINEER under this Agreement up to the time of termination provided the 
COUNTY reimburses the ENGINEER the cost for said work product as set forth in Section 5 and 
Exhibit A of this Agreement. In no case shall the compensation to be paid the ENGINEER for 
services, or any portion thereof, exceed the sum stated in Section 5. 

Page 2 of 6 
65



7. Standard of Care. In providing services under this Agreement, the ENGINEER 
shall perform its services in a manner consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily 
exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances. 
Failure to meet such standards shall be a material breach of this Agreement. 

 
8. Nondiscrimination. The ENGINEER, as required by law, shall not discriminate 

against an employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions or 
privileges of employment, or a matter directly or indirectly related to employment, because of race, 
color, religion, national origin, age, sex, disability that is unrelated to the individual's ability to perform 
the duties of a particular job or position, height, weight, marital status, or  political affiliation. 

 
The ENGINEER shall adhere to all applicable Federal, State and local laws, ordinances, 

rules and regulations prohibiting discrimination including, but not limited to, the following: 
 

A. The Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, 1976 PA 453, as amended. 
 

B. The Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act, 1976 PA 220, as amended. 
 

C. Section 504 of the Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, P. L. 93-112, 87 Stat 355, as 
amended, and regulations promulgated thereunder. 

 
D. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, P. L. 101-336, 104 Stat 227 (42 USC§ 

12101 et seq) as amended, and regulations promulgated thereunder. 
 

The ENGINEER further agrees that it will require all subcontractors for this Project to 
comply with the provisions of this Section 8. 

 
Breach of this section shall be regarded as a material breach of this Agreement. 

 
9. Compliance with the Law. The ENGINEER and all its subcontractors shall render 

the services to be provided pursuant to this Agreement in compliance with all applicable Federal, 
State and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and codes, including but not limited to, the 
Drain Code of 1956, as amended. 

 
10. Applicable Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed 

according to the laws of the State of Michigan without regard to any Michigan choice of law rules 
that would apply the law of any other jurisdiction to the extent not inconsistent with or pre-empted 
by federal law. 

 
The DRAIN COMMISSIONER, COUNTY and ENGINEER agree that any legal or 

equitable action arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be in Michigan Courts whose 
jurisdiction and venue shall be established in accordance with the statutes of the State of Michigan 
and/or Michigan Court Rules. In the event that any action is brought under this Agreement in or is 
moved to Federal Court, the venue for such action shall be the Federal Judicial District of Michigan, 
Western District, Southern Division. 

 
Page 3 of 6 

66



11. Independent Contractor. It is expressly understood and agreed that the 
ENGINEER is an independent contractor. The ENGINEER'S officers, employees, agents, and 
subcontractors shall in no way be deemed to be and shall not hold themselves out as employees 
or agents of the DRAIN COMMISSIONER or COUNTY. The ENGINEER'S officers, employees, 
agents, and subcontractors shall not be entitled to any fringe benefits of the COUNTY such as, but 
not limited to, health and accident insurance, life insurance, paid vacation leave, paid sick leave or 
longevity. 

 
The ENGINEER shall be responsible for paying all salaries, wages and other compensation 

which may be due its officers, employees, agents, or subcontractors and for the withholding and 
payment of all applicable taxes, including, but not limited to, income and Social Security taxes to 
the proper Federal, State and local governments. The ENGINEER shall maintain workers' 
compensation insurance and unemployment compensation coverage for its employees, as 
required by law. 

 
12. Indemnification and Hold Harmless. The ENGINEER shall indemnify and hold 

harmless the DRAIN COMMISSIONER, Leelanau County, Leelanau County's elected and 
appointed officers, employees, servants, and agents, from all claims, damages, lawsuits, costs 
and expenses that arises out of this Agreement, including but not limited to, all costs from 
administrative proceedings, court costs and reasonable attorney fees to the extent they are 
resulting from the willful misconduct, violations of Federal or State laws, rules or regulations or 
negligent acts or omissions or improper performance or non-performance of the Work required by 
this Agreement by the ENGINEER or its officers, employees, agents, or subcontractors. 

 
Pursuant to Act No. 165 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1966 (MCL 691.991), as amended, 

the responsibility for indemnification set forth in this Section 12 shall be limited to the degree of 
fault of ENGINEER or its officers, employees, agents, or subcontractors. 

 
The ENGINEER'S responsibilities under this section shall include the sum of damages, 

costs and expenses which are in excess of the sum of damages, costs and expenses which are 
paid out in behalf of or reimbursed to the DRAIN COMMISSIONER, Leelanau County, Leelanau 
County's officers, employees, servants and agents, by the insurance coverage obtained and/or 
maintained by the ENGINEER. 

 
13. Liability Insurance. The ENGINEER at all  times during the term of this Agreement 

shall maintain insurances that meet the requirements of the Leelanau County Board of 
Commissioners' Policy on "Insurance Requirements." A copy of said Board Policy is attached to 
this Agreement labeled Exhibit B, which is incorporated by reference into this Agreement and is 
made a part thereof. It is understood and agreed that the ENGINEER shall have the DRAIN 
COMMISSIONER added to the list of parties to be made Additional Insured pursuant to Item #7 
Additional Insured of the insurance requirements set forth in the attached Exhibit B. 

 
14. Government Function. The work to be performed under this Agreement is a 

governmental function. It is the intention of the parties hereto that this Agreement shall not in any 
way be construed to waive the defense of governmental immunity held by the DRAIN 
COMMISSIONER or Leelanau County. 

 
 

Page 4 of 6 67



15. Third Parties. This Agreement is not for the benefit of any third party. 
 

16. Assignment or Subcontracting. Neither party to this Agreement shall assign its 
duties and obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party. It 
is, however, expressly understood and agreed by the COUNTY, the DRAIN COMMISSIONER and 
the ENGINEER that any approved assignment or subcontract by the ENGINEER does not affect 
the ENGINEER'S responsibility and accountability to the COUNTY and the DRAIN 
COMMISSIONER for the assigned or subcontracted activity. 

 
17. Modification of Agreement. Modifications, amendments or waivers of any 

provisions of this Agreement may be made only by the written mutual consent of the parties 
hereto that it is signed by the authorized representatives of both parties. 

 
18. Waivers. No failure or delay on the part of either of the parties to this Agreement in 

exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall a 
single or partial exercise of any right, power, or privilege preclude any other or further exercise of 
any other right, power or privilege. 

 
In no event shall the making of any payment due to the ENGINEER constitute or be 

construed as a waiver by the COUNTY and DRAIN COMMISSIONER of any breach of a provision 
of this Agreement, or any default which may then exist, on the part of the ENGINEER, and the 
making of any such payment while any such breach or default shall exist, shall in no way waive, 
impair or prejudice any right or remedy available to the COUNTY and the DRAIN 
COMMISSIONER in respect to such breach or default. 

 
19. Purpose of Section Titles. The titles of the sections set forth in this Agreement 

are inserted for the convenience of reference only and shall be disregarded when construing or 
interpreting any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
20. Complete Agreement. This Agreement, the Exhibits A and B, the Drain Code of 

1956, and any additional or supplementary documents incorporated herein by specific reference 
contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties hereto, and no other 
agreements, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement or any part thereof 
shall have any validity or bind any of the parties hereto. 

 
21. Binding Effect of the Agreement. The covenants and conditions of this 

Agreement shall be binding upon and for the benefit of the heirs, administrators, executors, 
successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 

 
22. Invalid/Unenforceable Provisions. If any clause or provision of this Agreement is 

rendered invalid or unenforceable because of any State or Federal statute or regulation or ruling by 
any tribunal of competent jurisdiction, that clause or provision shall be null and void, and any such 
invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remainder of this 
Agreement. Where the deletion of the invalid or unenforceable clause or provision would result in the 
illegality and/or unenforceability of this Agreement, this Agreement shall be considered to have 
terminated as of the date in which the clause or provision was rendered invalid or unenforceable. 

 
Page 5 of 6 68



23. Surviving Provisions. All rights, duties and responsibilities of any party that either 
expressly or by their nature, extend into the future, including but not limited to those set forth in 
Sections 2, 10, 11, 12, 18, and 21 shall survive and remain in effect after termination or expiration 
of this Agreement. 

 
24. Certification of Authority to Sign Agreement. The people signing this Agreement 

on behalf of the parties hereto certify by their signatures that they are duly authorized to sign on 
behalf of said parties and that this Agreement has been authorized by said parties. 

 
THE AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES OF THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE FULLY 

EXECUTED THIS AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE AS-NEEDED CONSULTING AND 
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR LEELANAU COUNTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER ON THE DAY 
AND YEAR FIRST ABOVE WRITTEN. 

 

COUNTY OF LEELANAU ON BEHALF OF THE 
LEELANAU COUNTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER 
 
 
 
By:______________________________________________  Date:_____________   

Ty Wessell, Chairman 
County Board of Commissioners 

 

 
GEI CONSULTANTS OF MICHIGAN, P.C. 
 
 

By: ____________________________________   Date:  ___________ 
(Signature) 

 
Name:____Brian J. Cenci, P.E._____________  
 (Print or Type) 

 
Title:_____Sr. Project Manager, Grade 7______  
 (Print or Type) 

 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM FOR COUNTY OF LEELANAU 
COHL, STOKER & TOSKEY, P.C. 

   
 
  __________________________________________ 
  By:  Robert D. Townsend  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6 of 6 

69



 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
2024 MICHIGAN FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

70



EXHIBIT A 
 2024 MICHIGAN FEE SCHEDULE - COUNTY DRAIN & WATER RESOURCES 

 Michigan Fee Schedule 2024 - County Drain & Water Resources 

FEE SCHEDULE 
Hourly Billing Rate 

Personnel Category   $ per hour 

Staff Professional – Grade 1 $ 105 
Staff Professional – Grade 2 $ 118 
Project Professional – Grade 3 $ 127 
Project Professional – Grade 4 $ 135 
Senior Professional – Grade 5 $ 155 
Senior Professional – Grade 6 $ 180 
Senior Professional – Grade 7 $ 205 --> Brian Cenci, P.E.
Senior Consultant – Grade 8                                           $ 275 --> $240  Stu Kogge, PWS

 Senior Consultant – Grade 9 $ 300 
Senior Principal – Grade 10 $ 300 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Senior Drafter and Designer / GIS $ 118 
Drafter and Designer / GIS  $ 100 
*Senior Field Professional $ 122 
*Field Professional / Engineer                               $ 105

  *Senior Technician $   95 
*Technician II  $   88 
* Technician I  $   82 
Word Processor, Administrative Staff $   82 
Office Aide $   82 

 Rates will increase up to 5% annually, at GEI’s option, for all contracts that extend beyond twelve (12) months after the date 
 of the contract. Rates for Deposition and Testimony are increased 1.5 times. 

  OTHER PROJECT COSTS 
  Subconsultants, Subcontractors and Other Project Expenses - All costs for subconsultants, subcontractors and other 
  project expenses will be billed at cost plus a 15% service charge.  Examples of such expenses ordinarily charged to 
  projects are subcontractors; subconsultants: chemical laboratory charges; rented or leased field and laboratory 
  equipment; outside printing and reproduction; communications and mailing charges; reproduction expenses; shipping 
  costs for samples and equipment; disposal of samples; rental vehicles; fares for travel on public carriers; special fees for 
  insurance certificates, permits, licenses, etc.; fees for restoration of paving or land due to field exploration, etc.; state 
  sales and use taxes and state taxes on GEI fees. The 15% service charge will not apply to GEI-owned equipment and 
  vehicles or in-house reproduction expenses. 

Field and Laboratory Equipment Billing Rates – GEI-owned field and laboratory equipment such as pumps, sampling 
equipment, monitoring instrumentation, field density equipment, portable gas chromatographs, etc. will be billed at a 
daily, weekly, or monthly rate, as needed for the project. Expendable supplies are billed at a unit rate. 

Transportation and Subsistence - Automobile expenses for GEI or employee owned cars will be charged at the rate 
per mile set by the Internal Revenue Service for tax purposes plus tolls and parking charges, or at a day rate negotiated 
for each project. When required for a project, four-wheel drive vehicles owned by GEI or the employees will be billed 
at a daily rate appropriate for those vehicles. Per diem living costs for personnel on assignment away from their home 
office will be negotiated for each project. 

PAYMENT TERMS 
Invoices will be submitted monthly or upon completion of a specified scope of service, as described in the accompanying 
contract (proposal, project, or agreement document that is signed and dated by GEI and CLIENT). 

Payment is due upon receipt of the invoice.  Interest will accrue at the rate of 1% of the invoice amount per month, for 
amounts that remain unpaid more than 30 days after the invoice date.  All payments will be made by either check or 
electronic transfer to the address specified by GEI and will include reference to GEI’s invoice.

71



 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

LEELANAU COUNTY’S  
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

72



 
 

LEELANAU COUNTY 
BOARD POLICY 

 
 
 

GENERAL SUBJECT: Administration/General 

(County Administrator) 

Policy No. 13 

SPECIFIC SUBJECT: Insurance Requirements Policy Adopted: 04/17/1990 
  Revised: 02/15/1994 
  Revised: 05/21/2013 
  Revised: 12/19/2017 

 

 

APPLIES TO: All Leelanau County Employees and Elected Officials. 
 

 

PURPOSE:  The Leelanau County Board of Commissioners hereby establishes a policy on 
insurance requirements for contractors, vendors, individuals, and/or 
organizations receiving monies from Leelanau County. The purpose of these 
requirements is to assure that the parties referenced above are accepting 
appropriate responsibility for insuring their own operations, and that they are 
not unduly exposing Leelanau County taxpayers to liability and/or loss. 

 

The Contractor, and any and all of their subcontractors, shall not commence any 
work until they have met the insurance requirements outlined in this policy. All 
coverage shall be with insurance companies licensed and admitted to do 
business in the State of Michigan. All coverages shall be with insurance carriers 
acceptable to Leelanau County and have a minimum A.M. Best Company 
(www.ambest.com) Insurance Report rating of not less than A or A- (Excellent). 

 

1. Workers’ Compensation Insurance: The Contractor shall procure and maintain during 
the life of the contract, Workers’ Compensation Insurance, including Employers’ Liability 
Coverage, in accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of Michigan. Workers’ 
Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance are required if the party hires one or 
more persons or currently has employees. If a party currently does not have any 
employees, and is a sole proprietor, an affidavit must be filed with the County Clerk 
stating that the party currently has no employees and will not hire any while working for 
Leelanau County as a contractor or a subcontractor, etc. If a party currently does not 
have any employees and is incorporated (Inc.) or a limited liability corporation (LLC), 
they must file a Notice of Exclusion, WC-337, with the State of Michigan and then 
provide a copy of the State-approved document to the County Clerk. 

73

http://www.ambest.com/


File Name:  Board Policy re Insurance Requirements Policy 
Page 2 of 3 

 

2. Contractor’s Tools & Equipment: The Contractor shall be responsible for insuring all its 
tools, equipment and materials which it may leave at the Project’s work site. The County 
shall not be responsible for any loss or damage to the Contractor’s tools, equipment and 
materials. 

 

3. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance: [For contracts for professional 
services, e.g., Architect, Engineers, Doctors, Dentist, etc.] The Contractor shall possess 
Professional Liability Insurance (errors and omissions) with limits of not less than 
$1,000,000.00 per occurrence or claim. If the Professional Liability Insurance is on a 
claims-made basis, the Contractor shall purchase extended reporting period “tail” 
coverage for a minimum of three (3) years after termination of the Agreement. 

 
4. Commercial General Liability Insurance: The Contractor shall procure and maintain 

during the life of their contract, Commercial General Liability Insurance on an 
“Occurrence Basis” with limits of liability not less than $1,000,000.00 per occurrence 
and aggregate combined single limit, Personal Injury, Bodily Injury, and Property 
Damage. Coverage shall include the following extensions: (A) Contractual Liability; (B) 
Products and Completed Operations; (C) Independent Contractors Coverage; (D) Broad 
Form General Liability Extensions or equivalent; (E) Deletion of all Explosion, Collapse, 
and Underground (XCU) Exclusions, if applicable. 

 

5. Motor Vehicle Liability: The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of  
their contract Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, including Michigan No-Fault Coverage, 
with limits of liability not less than $1,000,000.00 per occurrence combined single limit, 
Bodily Injury, and Property Damage. Coverage shall include all owned vehicles, all non- 
owned vehicles, and all hired vehicles. 

 
6. Deductibles: The Contractor shall be responsible for paying all deductibles in its 

insurance coverages. 
 

7. Additional Insured: Commercial General Liability and Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, 
as described above, shall include an endorsement stating that the following shall be 
Additional Insureds: Leelanau County, all elected and appointed officials, all employees 
and volunteers, all boards, commissions, and/or authorities and board members, 
including employees and volunteers thereof. The Contractor’s insurance coverages shall 
be primary to the Additional Insureds and not contributing with any other insurance or 
similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, regardless of whether said other 
available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 

 
8. Cancellation Notice: Workers’ Compensation Insurance, Commercial General Liability 

Insurance, and Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, as described above, shall include an 
endorsement stating the following: “It is understood and agreed that Thirty (30) days 
Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, Reduction, and/or Material 
Change shall be sent to the office of the Leelanau County Administrator. 

74



File Name:  Board Policy re Insurance Requirements Policy 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 

9. Owners’ and Contractors’ Protective Liability: [For Contracts for Construction or Large 
Repair or Maintenance Projects such as road work, sewer work or building projects] The 
Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of the contract, a separate  
Owners’ and Contractors’ Protective Liability Policy with limits of liability not less than 
$1,000,000.00 per occurrence and aggregate combined single limit, Personal Injury, 
Bodily Injury, and Property Damage. Leelanau County shall be “Named Insured” on said 
coverage. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation shall apply to this policy. 

 
10. Proof of Insurance Coverage: The Contractor shall provide Leelanau County at the time 

that the contracts are returned by him/her for execution, A “Certificate of Liability 
Insurance,” on Accord Form #25, with the necessary coverages included, as listed below: 

 

a. Certificate of Insurance for Workers’ Compensation Insurance; 
b. Certificate of Insurance for Commercial General Liability Insurance; 
c. Certificate of Insurance for Vehicle Liability Insurance; 
d. Certificate of Insurance for Professional Liability Insurance on Projects where 

such insurance is required. 
e. Original Policy, or original Binder pending issuance of policy, for Owners’ & 

Contractors’ Protective Liability Insurance, where such insurance is required. 
f. If so requested, Certified Copies of all policies mentioned above will be 

furnished. 
 

11. If any of the above coverages expire during the term of the contract, the Contractor 
shall deliver renewal certificates and/or policies to the Leelanau County Administrator at 
least ten (10) days prior to the expiration date. 

 
Failure to comply with these insurance requirements could result in the termination of a 

contract or delay in receipt of funds. Questions regarding the scope of applicability of 

this policy may be directed to the Leelanau County Administrator. 

75



76



77



Department Approval: __________________________________________ Date: ____________________________  

EXECUTIVE DOCUMENT SUMMARY 
Department: ___________________________________ 

Contact Person: ________________________________ 

Telephone Number: _____________________________ 

Submittal Dates 

Select Meeting Type: _________________________

Date of Meeting: ______________________________

Financial/Source Selection Method 
Vendor: ______________________________________ 

Address/ 
Phone: 

 ____________________________________________ 

Select One: __________________________________

Other: _____________________________________

Account No.: __________________________________

CIP Project?

If Grant, Match Account No.: ________________________

Budgeted Amount: ____________________________  Contracted Amount: _______________________________ 

Document Description 

Request to Waive Board Policy on Bid Requirements Department Head/Elected Official Authorization

Suggested Recommendation: 

Michelle L. Crocker
(231)256-9824 12/05/2023

Fidlar Technologies

101.425.215.970.000
(563)345-1284

$ 15,000.00 $ 16,900.00

The County Clerk's Office in collaboration with IT Technician Liana Wilson have reviewed Vital Statics
Software options to create and catalog Leelanau County's Vital Records such as Marriages, Deaths, Births
and DBA's.

The two software companies that performed demonstrations were Fidlar Technologies (APEX software) and
Tyler Technologies. Fidlar Technologies is a price of $16,900.00, with yearly maintenance of $5,400.00 and
Tyler Technologies is a price estimate of $96,000.00 without the option of cataloging prior years
(outsourced), and a yearly maintenance of $9,200.00.

The recommendation is to enter into a software agreement and yearly maintenance with Fidlar Technologies
for installation of APEX software in FY 2024.

County Clerk
Executive Board

I move to recommend that the Leelanau County Board of Commissioners to approve/authorize County Clerk
Michelle L. Crocker to enter into an agreement with Fidlar Technologies for APEX Vital Statistics Software in
an amount not to exceed $16,900.00. Funds to come from 101.425.215.970.000.

Digitally signed by Michelle Crocker 
Date: 2023.11.28 16:34:42 -05'00'

✔

✔ Quotation

Capital PurchaseDescription:

78



From: Snider, Glen
To: Michelle Crocker; Jennifer Zywicki
Subject: Leelanau County Clerk / Tyler Technologies re: vital records budgetary estimate
Date: Monday, October 30, 2023 10:57:01 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Hi Michelle,
 
Here is the budgetary estimate for Tyler’s Records Management vital records software for your
office.  Let me emphasize “estimate”.  These numbers are intentionally on the high side. I would
rather be on the high side for budgeting and you not need it all than to give you a lowball number as
an estimate and then you find out you need more money.  You’ll look like a hero if you don’t use all
the money you budgeted for!
 
There are many Clerks in Michigan using this software to do their jobs every day right now.  There is
a reason that so many counties use this software and not the others. Clerks in Washtenaw, Macomb,
Kent, and Ingham are just a few of the counties that are using this software.  You’ll be in good
company if you select Tyler’s Records Management.
 
Here are the numbers. 
 

Records Management software for the Clerk’s office as an On Premise installation:
Software License Fee estimate: $32K

One time license fees
Perpetual license
3 milestone payments
County responsible for supplying and refreshing servers (database, application
and web servers)

 
Professional Services estimate: $64K

Data and image conversion from current database
Software installation and configuration

Setting up the workflow and fields the way you prefer
Based on a Business Process Review (BPR) with you during the
course of the project

Training of all staff
Training pre Go Live
Support immediately post Go Live

Transition from our Implementation team to our Support Team
Joining the Tyler Support staff for unlimited technical support and the
Tyler User Community

Professional Services expenses are billed as delivered during the course of the
project

Estimate for a software installation project for your office to be +/- 9
months.

That means the expenses would be spread over the 9-month

79

mailto:Glen.Snider@tylertech.com
mailto:mcrocker@leelanau.gov
mailto:jzywicki@leelanau.gov



project.
Actual expenses are billed

 
Annual Fees estimate: $9.2K

Year 1 waived
Annual fees invoiced in Year 2
Unlimited technical support
Free software updates and upgrades
Disaster Recovery Services

The estimate for a total contract for an On-Premise installation would be $105.2K
 
We recommend US Imaging to digitize and index the information you currently have in your books. 
Then we can upload it into our system.  I’ll have Josh Dossen with US Imaging contact you to provide
that info.  Here’s Josh’s contact info:  989-992-3890; jdosson@us-imaging.com.
This budgetary estimate includes functionality that is unique to Tyler – no other software vendor has
developed these innovations (please click on the link for details):

1. Vitals Access – allows your constituents to request vital records electronically without having
to visit the office.

2. Filings Access – allows your constituents to fill out and submit any form that gets filed in your
office.

 
It also includes functionality you would expect in a modern software system.  This functionality
makes it easy for your citizens to work with your office and makes it easier for your staff to do their
jobs efficiently and accurately:

3. Public Access web site to your records – very easy to use web portal.  Will be combined with
your county RoD site so your citizens have access to land and vital records from one site.

4. Remote / electronic marriage applications – very easy to use process to complete and submit
marriage applications from any device.

 
Why Tyler is the Perfect Partner for Michigan – Why Tyler is the best choice for your office.
 
Michelle, Jen, it would be an honor to include your office as a client.  Please let me know what else I
need to do to earn your business.

 
Regards,
Glen
 
 
Glen Snider
Senior Account Executive
Tyler Technologies, Inc. 

C: 720.270.7540
www.tylertech.com
 

80

mailto:jdosson@us-imaging.com
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2flivesharewest2.seismic.com%2fi%2fjrHvYnUQAjAGVKSJ649IpTCEhPLUSSIGNZKC5tGT4TgWckQugqrvihYJLZaEfAz___bFwGraaRpMEZCi9APLUSSIGN44BwMGSFGdV9BcLPLUSSIGN7wtvVSD1LlbRHAeROJnU89sUH9Qjf6LbNFozda&c=E,1,ZcWipNLtNrjm3Qb0ZlBqOsnQ0CTj23JXwuis_NpBkS8ypchOUMCpeHVDtlHorYi6HvsoHpmJ0KasziBNYtcFNtAi8V_lPt7SwKIoBUfy00aCKmxiScFUjok,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2flivesharewest2.seismic.com%2fi%2fjrHvYnUQAjAGVKSJ649IpTCEhPLUSSIGNZKC5tGT4TgWckQugqrvihYJLZaEfAz___bFwGraaGPqZRwOwfu2lVlSn8zwwPLUSSIGNvthZd8___6YjCQMGV___kH9gw3D3NBkKUK62C3d3xiSCeRn&c=E,1,yQQiA-JBHUoJMc5BGa9YYvo2EGrlG-FnS1QaVYIGsIgD6dg7Ku2i5hDnJg_Q5UqAr9uaOwyv5wvtMAOdJ7rPz7r3pUwDtFGtTWJtakQvq1DDriAhNHm6&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2flivesharewest2.seismic.com%2fi%2fjrHvYnUQAjAGVKSJ649IpTCEhPLUSSIGNZKC5tGT4TgWckQugqJa963i9aMUEomPIpv4sEitphPLUSSIGNgaPenxBxH2YQjc___zNqMDk8fx0RHw7RH23hmFZgVW7Za2OkrSu5udUEnwUewa&c=E,1,vsmrtovQEc5rfRKUNEL857zLebTHu-B6LiJjq_lhfp8KKfHa2_-WdA8ata77eW7lpIq66egN9Q4f4LP1K-080c2ei46FyqNJ3RlgS0Fkjaw_CeRQfUI,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2flivesharewest2.seismic.com%2fi%2fjrHvYnUQAjAGVKSJ649IpTCEhPLUSSIGNZKC5tGT4TgWckQugr___zw4K___1TOi7Q___xuImKGwfLoEY81JPYYPLUSSIGN8QSdG6nrFmfWfBa___ZgLcX2UwNh18rvnupiAEHy6EEucwc9KaGy6sV&c=E,1,8pPCUtisBvhKcZkCcALDyhJgjt3xG2RIKpls1LTB8vEHzxU_kuOHUaQIlxskT9KM2xMSR_pRTgsN6rJ0m57V-f6FBSGqSEMw1xo1_FcI6lsbibbfpZKI&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2flivesharewest2.seismic.com%2fi%2fjrHvYnUQAjAGVKSJ649IpTCEhPLUSSIGNZKC5tGT4TgWckQugr___zw4K___1TOi7Q___xuImKGwfbfkDL5cXFmIb___6AcCv5Qqyt0PLUSSIGNMVJP___NYPUf8PK8QU7Qz4YvCVt2w___IqgcrYJEhKL&c=E,1,9ws7AbLJMZLvt0mCUFCtcATHVQY8yL2MKtjKFDmHlIl74O8zkK1bXMXf9gY72F_YbAHflJU-w5JB-S_KSw8AKw4Yja9pL7p2j5ubys6dc94S3Zd_nVTq_DuFMw,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.tylertech.com%2f&c=E,1,UUV_InlyzoKWqIVA2o6qw54H4omPbbNhz1OVMIVxF3Y2_SHSK6iFOlRDEjqf_Fh8GjPX05xpKzJP2xm-u_3-twVAYqL39IfODWhhpcan-EcvrKkf&typo=1


81

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.tylertech.com%2f&c=E,1,z9oM2M8PVZowOA4CEHr6WCDh1RltbN6-gvVvVbfAQ4KKGOMt9e24PExWSPzkvfqbfcRXGuDTojO-AMwp_kcY6yTgRB-hvQ9HYDRkNaYl1s4vCuPGqXw,&typo=1


From: Scott Moore
To: Jennifer Zywicki
Subject: MI Leelanau Apex Proposal.docx
Date: Friday, September 8, 2023 12:48:23 PM
Attachments: MI Leelanau Apex Proposal.docx

MI Leelanau Apex Why doc.docx

Hi Jen:
 
Nice seeing you yesterday.  Thanks for arranging for the preso.  Your staff was a ton of fun…………If I
was a bit off my game, it was because Molly has that darn mustache tattoo on her finger and every
time she put her finger to her face,………….well, you know what it looked like 
 
I’m attaching two documents for your review.
 

1. A revised Apex proposal.  This comes with both good and bad news………….
a. Good news:  I was able to keep the installation cost the same as three years ago (I

could hardly believe it had been that long )
b. Bad news:  I wasn’t able to keep the annual fee at $2,500.  That was issued during

the time of COVID and we were really trying to incent counties so we could keep
our production team busy.  The problem is now we have two very similar sized
counties who are paying standard market rates.  Osceola County pays $5.4K per
year and Gladwin pays $6.0K per year.  I chose the lower of those two options 

 
2. A short document outlining the differentiating features of Apex.  As it had been a while

since you sat in on the preso, I wanted to provide that to refresh your memory.

 
Last thing I want to mention and IT’S VERY IMPORTANT.
 
This proposal includes enrollment into our LifeCycle program.  With Lifecycle, anytime we come out
with a new product or service, Leelanau County will receive it for no additional charge.  I know a lot
of vendors nickel and dime counties after the Partnership is formed but we simply don’t do that. 
The amounts shown in the agreement are all that will ever be paid.  LifeCycle will insure you are
always up-to-date with technology with no negative ramifications on your budget.
 
Looking forward to hearing any questions you might have.  Until then, take care.

SCOTT MOORE
Vice President of Sales
563-345-1284 | Office
309-230-4398 | Cell
ScottM@fidlar.com

Search County Records Online with Tapestry!
Protect your most valuable investment with Property Fraud Alert!

82

mailto:ScottM@fidlar.com
mailto:jzywicki@leelanau.gov
tel:563-345-1284
tel:309-230-4398
mailto:ScottM@fidlar.com
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.fidlar.com%2f&c=E,1,--o_81IyUntCcPK7LFvnSZ4Zk5EMHuiTJhCslqlsiSRg2InXi2UTrhPzsSH6kZEUChq6bHnfkutn-xNUIwu2jAviu4O6wAuECXQtR0Ri_g,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fwww.landrecords.net%2f&c=E,1,8SwnecVmjuOqWVy5rf2U6WN_vksryP3RRHSYuGbsQplvrhI48718PSk3jmdwV3_P6OgrQa5L8SH7j4S0hNXhvXtn1JGxFI-xEuISUzsx3s8G4t2pLRS8F_63Yw,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fwww.propertyfraudalert.com%2f&c=E,1,qsmpYxcA8xka5PMGy6IBSD3sVeogv5a87Thr1R1__U3dTLrJIcpdUL3nA1d_yM37FjnliPYvqldadf7jiHRbb2xt3wPpI33ZRv2Dpl6DWESFxw,,&typo=1

Leelanau County, MI - APEX Vital Statistics Proposal







[image: AVID Workflow Cover]























































Leelanau County, MI 

Clerks Office

Ms. Michelle Crocker

Partnership Proposal

September 8, 2023

































[image: AVID Table Of Contents]







Leelanau County, MI

Clerks Office

Ms. Michelle Crocker

Partnership Proposal

September 8, 2023











[image: AVID Table Of Contents]

































· Company Information						    Page   3

· APEX Vital Statistics Product Summary			    Page   5

· APEX Vital Statistics Pricing Summary				    Page   9





























[bookmark: _Hlk24085363]Company Information



Overview

Fidlar Technologies has participated in the County document recording and management industry since our founding in 1854.  In the beginning, we provided books and ledgers to the recording industry.  When the industry moved towards automation in 1985, Fidlar transitioned into providing automated Land and Vital Records management solutions.

From that point forward, Fidlar has led the industry by releasing new and improved products that take advantage of the latest technology.  Fidlar’s Vital Records and Land Records document management software systems are used in over 270 counties, across 15 states. In the state of Michigan, we currently partner with 21 counties.  

Our company headquarters is located in Davenport, Iowa and all but our six staff members in our Exeter, NH location are based in our main office.



[image: ]

Despite the variations in size, every county has the same goal:  To be the steward of the public record.  It is in everyone’s interest that these land records be accurately, easily and efficiently recorded, and securely preserved in perpetuity.  Fidlar provides the best products to do just that.











		



		Fidlar Technologies



		350 Research Parkway, Davenport, IA  52806



		Ernest Riggen, Owner

Dave Steil, Owner



		563-345-1200



		ernier@fidlar.com

daves@fidlar.com



		Scott A. Moore, VP, Sales

Cell - 309-230-4398

scottm@fidlar.com



		Raquel Posateri, Partner Relationship Manager

Cell – 563-214-6003

raquelp@fidlar.com



		Premier provider of technology and services for the management of public information



		www.Fidlar.com













[image: ]





[bookmark: _Hlk508540309][image: ]


[image: ]


[image: ]     

[image: ]


APEX Vital Statistics Pricing Summary





		Description

		Module or Service

		                     Cost



		Software (LifeCycle Payment)  

		                    $5,400



		

		APEX Software

		Included



		

		Online Marriage Portal

		Included



		

		Future Vitals LifeCycle Modules

		Included



		

		Unlimited Support / Maintenance

		Included



		Services

		

		$11,500



		

		Installation and Configuration

		Included



		

		Workflow

		Included



		

		Project Management 

		Included



		

		Data Conversion

		Included



		

		Image Conversion

		Included



		

		Training

		Included



		Hardware

		

		Not Included







Billing Milestones:

Billing Options:

Services:  Service fee (this is a one-time fee) can be deferred for up to 12 months (with no interest charged).  Another option is to split the 11.5K fee into three equal payments of $3,833 and pay annually.  The first of these three payments can also be deferred for up to 12 months.



Hardware:  We are happy to visit with your County IT to discuss the specifics listed below.



Server Requirements:  (Virtual Environment supported as well)

· Between 2 to 4 cores

· Minimum clock speed of 2.4GHz

· 16GB RAM

· MS SQL 2012 or later

· MS Windows Server 2012



Workstation Requirements:

· 2.4GHz minimum clock speed

· 8GB RAM

· Windows 10 64 bit OS



Monitor:

· 1920 x 1080 resolution



Counter PC:  Below is the recommended model for the counter PC



[image: ]



Note:  Of the hardware listed above, you will definitely need at least one of the counter kiosk units.  IT will have to confirm that the other specs are being met.  You are likely meeting the server and workstation requirement.  The monitor resolution would need investigating.





4

	[image: AVID Workflow Footer]

image3.jpeg



image4.jpeg



image5.jpeg



image6.jpeg



image7.jpeg



image8.jpeg



image9.jpeg



image10.png



image1.jpg



image2.jpeg



image11.jpeg




Apex Unique Features and Benefits



1.  Application website:  Apex allows you to post a link to your website which contains digitized versions of all vitals applications.  This saves the citizen time and also allows you to read from a typed document vs handwritten



2.  Mobil Friendly site:  The Apex application website has been optimized for mobile devices.  This means that if someone is using the site from a cell phone, there will be no weird spacing issues.



3. The application website has auto logic which saves both you and the citizen time



a. Will identify if a marriage application is beyond 33 days from the date of application.

b. Will identify if the date of birth puts the applicant under 18 years old.  With this, Apex will automatically create the appropriate form.

c. Will identify if there is no SSN present and create the appropriate form.

d. Will identify if the applicant wishes to waive the 3 day waiting period for marriage licenses and with that, will create the proper form



4.  Apex works in conjunction with a very handy counter tablet to allow applicants to review their information and to sign.



5.  Apex allows you to electronically certify all records for email to the requestor.  Remember, MCL 565.232 allows for this.



a. With death records, it means the funeral home director receives his records without having to come into the office.  Also means he can email copies immediately to his customer.

b. Apex can also e-certify any document type.  This means you can save your citizens a lot of money on shipping by simply e-certifying a document and emailing to them



6.  Once the State of MI has combined the VERA and EDRS platforms, we will be entering into a project with them to integrate Apex with this new platform.  Once finished, this will even further automate your processes.



7.  Apex automatically generates DBA renewal letters in a very professional form.  



8. Apex provides an online public search portal which citizens can use to verify that a record is available within the county.



9. Once the citizen has verified that the record is available, they can request and pay for the record online, thus saving them a ton of time.



10. Apex come with a full back-scan and back-index module.  With this, you can work through your paper books and digitize them for better retention and public access.







Leelanau County, MI - APEX Vital Statistics Proposal 

  

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Leelanau County, MI  

Clerks Office 

Ms. Michelle Crocker 

Partnership Proposal 

September 8, 2023 

83



Leelanau County, MI - APEX Vital Statistics Proposal 

  

2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Leelanau County, MI 

Clerks Office 

Ms. Michelle Crocker 

Partnership Proposal 

September 8, 2023 
 

 

• Company Information          Page   3 

• APEX Vital Statistics Product Summary       Page   5 

• APEX Vital Statistics Pricing Summary        Page   9 

84



Leelanau County, MI - APEX Vital Statistics Proposal 

  

3 

Company Information 
 

Overview 

Fidlar Technologies has participated in the County document recording and 

management industry since our founding in 1854.  In the beginning, we provided 

books and ledgers to the recording industry.  When the industry moved towards 

automation in 1985, Fidlar transitioned into providing automated Land and Vital 

Records management solutions. 

From that point forward, Fidlar has led the industry by releasing new and 

improved products that take advantage of the latest technology.  Fidlar’s Vital 

Records and Land Records document management software systems are used in 

over 270 counties, across 15 states. In the state of Michigan, we currently partner 

with 21 counties.   

Our company headquarters is located in Davenport, Iowa and all but our six staff 

members in our Exeter, NH location are based in our main office. 

 

 
Despite the variations in size, every county has the same goal:  To be the steward 

of the public record.  It is in everyone’s interest that these land records be 

accurately, easily and efficiently recorded, and securely preserved in perpetuity.  

Fidlar provides the best products to do just that. 

 

 

 

85



Leelanau County, MI - APEX Vital Statistics Proposal 

  

4 

 

 

 

Fidlar Technologies 

350 Research Parkway, Davenport, IA  52806 

Ernest Riggen, Owner 

Dave Steil, Owner 

563-345-1200 

ernier@fidlar.com 

daves@fidlar.com 

Scott A. Moore, VP, Sales 

Cell - 309-230-4398 

scottm@fidlar.com 

Raquel Posateri, Partner Relationship Manager 

Cell – 563-214-6003 

raquelp@fidlar.com 

Premier provider of technology and services for the 

management of public information 

www.Fidlar.com 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

86

mailto:ernier@fidlar.com
mailto:daves@fidlar.com
http://www.fidlar.com/


Leelanau County, MI - APEX Vital Statistics Proposal 

  

5 
  

87



Leelanau County, MI - APEX Vital Statistics Proposal 

  

6 
 

88



Leelanau County, MI - APEX Vital Statistics Proposal 

  

7 
      

89



Leelanau County, MI - APEX Vital Statistics Proposal 

  

8 
  

90



Leelanau County, MI - APEX Vital Statistics Proposal 

  

9 

APEX Vital Statistics Pricing Summary 
 

 

Description Module or Service                      Cost 

Software (LifeCycle Payment)                       $5,400  
APEX Software Included  
Online Marriage Portal Included  
Future Vitals LifeCycle Modules Included  
Unlimited Support / Maintenance Included 

Services 
 

$11,500  
Installation and Configuration Included  
Workflow Included  
Project Management  Included  
Data Conversion Included  
Image Conversion Included  
Training Included 

Hardware  Not Included 

 

Billing Milestones: 

Billing Options: 

Services:  Service fee (this is a one-time fee) can be deferred for up to 12 months 

(with no interest charged).  Another option is to split the 11.5K fee into three 

equal payments of $3,833 and pay annually.  The first of these three payments 

can also be deferred for up to 12 months. 

 
Hardware:  We are happy to visit with your County IT to discuss the specifics 

listed below. 

 

Server Requirements:  (Virtual Environment supported as well) 

• Between 2 to 4 cores 

o Minimum clock speed of 2.4GHz 

• 16GB RAM 

• MS SQL 2012 or later 

• MS Windows Server 2012 

 

Workstation Requirements: 

• 2.4GHz minimum clock speed 

• 8GB RAM 

91



Leelanau County, MI - APEX Vital Statistics Proposal 

  

10 

• Windows 10 64 bit OS 

 

Monitor: 

• 1920 x 1080 resolution 

 

Counter PC:  Below is the recommended model for the counter PC 

 

 
 

Note:  Of the hardware listed above, you will definitely need at least one of the 

counter kiosk units.  IT will have to confirm that the other specs are being met.  

You are likely meeting the server and workstation requirement.  The monitor 

resolution would need investigating. 

 

 

92



Apex Unique Features and Benefits 
 

1.  Application website:  Apex allows you to post a link to your website which contains digitized 
versions of all vitals applications.  This saves the citizen time and also allows you to read from a 
typed document vs handwritten 

 
2.  Mobil Friendly site:  The Apex application website has been optimized for mobile devices.  This 

means that if someone is using the site from a cell phone, there will be no weird spacing issues. 
 

3. The application website has auto logic which saves both you and the citizen time 
 

a. Will identify if a marriage application is beyond 33 days from the date of application. 
b. Will identify if the date of birth puts the applicant under 18 years old.  With this, Apex 

will automatically create the appropriate form. 
c. Will identify if there is no SSN present and create the appropriate form. 
d. Will identify if the applicant wishes to waive the 3 day waiting period for marriage 

licenses and with that, will create the proper form 
 

4.  Apex works in conjunction with a very handy counter tablet to allow applicants to review their 
information and to sign. 

 
5.  Apex allows you to electronically certify all records for email to the requestor.  Remember, MCL 

565.232 allows for this. 
 

a. With death records, it means the funeral home director receives his records without 
having to come into the office.  Also means he can email copies immediately to his 
customer. 

b. Apex can also e-certify any document type.  This means you can save your citizens a lot 
of money on shipping by simply e-certifying a document and emailing to them 

 
6.  Once the State of MI has combined the VERA and EDRS platforms, we will be entering into a 

project with them to integrate Apex with this new platform.  Once finished, this will even further 
automate your processes. 

 
7.  Apex automatically generates DBA renewal letters in a very professional form.   

 
8. Apex provides an online public search portal which citizens can use to verify that a record is 

available within the county. 
 

9. Once the citizen has verified that the record is available, they can request and pay for the record 
online, thus saving them a ton of time. 
 

10. Apex come with a full back-scan and back-index module.  With this, you can work through your 
paper books and digitize them for better retention and public access. 
 
 

93



94



1

Laurel Evans

From: Laurel Evans
Sent: Wednesday, November 29, 2023 3:04 PM
To: Deborah Allen; Doug Rexroat; Gwenne Allgaier; James O'Rourke; Jamie Kramer; Kama Ross; Melinda 

Lautner; Ty  Wessell
Subject: Committee Of The Whole DRAFT motions, answers to questions
Attachments: RE_ Question on the B_L Environmental Health Board of Appeals.pdf; Corres_Construction Board of 

Appeals Appointments.pdf; Corres_Galla_MMPC_appts.pdf; Draft Motions_COTW_11282023.pdf

Importance: High

TrackingTracking: Recipient Read
Deborah Allen
Doug Rexroat Read: 11/30/2023 12:38 PM
Gwenne Allgaier
James O'Rourke Read: 11/29/2023 5:00 PM
Jamie Kramer
Kama Ross Read: 11/29/2023 3:25 PM
Melinda Lautner
Ty  Wessell Read: 11/29/2023 3:16 PM

Gree ngs: 
 
I have a ached a copy of the DRAFT mo ons from this week’s annual Commi ee of the Whole session, which was held 
to review and make recommenda ons for the various appointments to boards and commissions. This document is in 
dra  form, as I will be reconciling it with the notes taken by the County Clerk’s Office. 
 
Based on specific ques ons posed during this session, please review the following: 
 
Benzie/Leelanau Environmental Health Board of Appeals (EH Director Eric Johnston’s documenta on is a ached). In 
reaching out to Forest “Bud” Welch, who had been recommended for appointment, he stated he is s ll interested, 
and his qualifica on is that although he doesn’t have specific qualifica ons for this board, he has “common 
sense.” 

 
I checked with Trudy, and she says there is no impediment in changing the name of the Solid Waste Council, 
which has been that board’s tle since it was created. 
 
During discussion of the lack of business owner membership on the Workforce Development Board, it was 
suggested by Chairman Wessell to ask Vice-Chairman Rexroat, as the County Board rep to Networks 
Northwest, to reach out to this Board. 
 
The Board has also honored the request of Building Official Amber Weber and the Planning Department to hold off on 
making appointments to the Construc on Board of Appeals and to the Materials Management Plan Commi ee (see 
a achments), in order to adver se for the former and wait to see what transpires on a regional ini a ve for the la er. 
 

95



2

Post-mee ng, it was also suggested by Chairman Wessell, that although the County’s appointee to the Northern Lakes 
Community Mental Health Authority, Greg McMorrow, has a term set to expire on March 31, 2024, Mr. Wessell would 
like to have the full Board review the current appointee and other applicant’s documenta on this month; this 
documenta on will be incorporated within the packet for next week’s Execu ve Board session. 
 Laurel S. Evans 
Execu ve Assistant 
Leelanau County Administra on 
8527 E. Government Center Dr., Suite #101 
Su ons Bay, MI 49682 
231-256-9711 main 
231-256-8101 direct 
231-256-0120 fax 
E-MAIL CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: The contents of this e-mail message and any a achments are intended solely for the addressee(s) and may contain confiden al and/or legally privileged informa on. If you are not the 
intended recipient of this message or if this message has been addressed to you in error, please immediately alert the sender by reply e-mail and then delete this message and any a achments. If you are not the intended 
recipient, you are no fied that any use, dissemina on, distribu on, copying, or storage of this message or any a achment is strictly prohibited. 

 

96



Leelanau County Board of Commissioners 
Committee of the Whole, Draft Recommendations – 11/28/2023 
 
Motion by Ross to recommend to the County Board of Commissioners to reappoint John 
Sommavilla to the Bay Area Transportation Authority, to a three-year term expiring December 
31, 2026. Seconded by Ross/Allgaier. [6-0] 
 
 
Motion by Lautner to recommend to the County Board of Commissioners to appoint Forrest 
“Bud” Welch to the Benzie/Leelanau Environmental Health Board of Appeals, to a two-year 
term expiring December 31, 2025. Seconded by Ross. [5-1] 
 
 
Motion by Lautner to recommend to the County Board of Commissioners to reappoint John 
Arens, T. Eftaxiadis, and Robert Foster to the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority to three-
year terms expiring December 31, 2026. Seconded by O’Rourke/Allgaier. [6-0] 
 
 
Motion by Allgaier to recommend to the County Board of Commissioners to reappoint Richard 
Isphording to the Land Bank Fast Track Authority to a three-year term expiring December 31, 
2026. Seconded by O’Rourke. [6-0] 
 
 
Motion by Ross to recommend to the Board of Commissioners to Commissioners to reappoint 
Susan Chapman to the Michigan Department of Health and Human Services Board to a three-
year term expiring December 31, 2026. Seconded by Allgaier. [6-0] 
 
 
Motion by Allgaier to recommend to the County Board of Commissioners to appoint Allison 
Zimpfer to the Northern Michigan Regional Entity Substance Use Disorder Services Policy 
Oversight Board to a three-year term expiring December 31, 2026. Seconded by Lautner. [6-0] 
 
 
Motion by O’Rourke to recommend to the County Board of Commissioners to reappoint Steven 
Plamondon to the Northwest Regional Airport Authority Board to a three-year term expiring 
December 31, 2026. Seconded by Allgaier. [6-0] 
 
 
Motion by Ross to recommend to the County Board of Commissioners to reappoint John Arens 
to the Leelanau County Parks and Recreation Commission, to a three-year term expiring 
December 31, 2026. Seconded by O’Rourke. [6-0] 
 
 
  

97



Leelanau County Board of Commissioners 
Committee of the Whole, Draft Recommendations – 11/28/2023 
 
Motion by Lautner to recommend to the Board of Commissioners to reappoint Craig Brown 
(Transportation category) and Robert Miller (Economic Development category) to the 
Planning Commission to three-year terms expiring December 31, 2026. Seconded by Allgaier. 
[6-0] 
 
 
Motion by Lautner to recommend to the Board of Commissioners to appoint Francis Criqui 
(Education category) to the Planning Commission to a three-year term expiring December 31, 
2026. Seconded by Allgaier/O’Rourke. [6-0] 
 
 
Motion by Lautner to recommend to the County Board of Commissioners to reappoint Tricia 
Denton to the Soil Erosion, Sedimentation and Stormwater Runoff Control Ordinance Board 
of Appeals to a three-year term expiring December 31, 2026. Seconded by Allgaier. [6-0] 
 
 
(Amended) Motion by Lautner to recommend to the County Board of Commissioners to waive 
its Board policy and reappoint Mark Bevelhymer*, Tom MacDonald, and James Palmer* and 
also reappoint John Fletcher to the Solid Waste Council to two-year terms expiring December 
31, 2025. Seconded by O’Rourke. [6-0] 
*Ex-Officio members 
 
 
Motion by Ross to recommend to the County Board of Commissioners to appoint Marcia Harris 
to the Solid Waste Council to a two-year term expiring December 31, 2025. Seconded by 
Allgaier. [5-1] 

98



From: Eric Johnston
To: Laurel Evans
Subject: RE: Question on the B/L Environmental Health Board of Appeals
Date: Wednesday, November 29, 2023 12:01:06 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Chapter IX - BLDHD District Sanitary Code (Hearings & Appeals).pdf

Hello Laurel,
Attached is Chapter IX or our District Sanitary Code which describes how the board membership is to
be comprised and their duties.  There are no specific technical or experience qualifications to be on
the board other than what is specified in the code.
Please let me know if you need anything else regarding this topic.
Eric
 
J. Eric Johnston, R.S.
Director of Environmental Health
6051 Frankfort Hwy.
Suite 100
Benzonia, MI  49616
Office: 231-882-2109
ejohnston@bldhd.org
 

From: Laurel Evans <levans@leelanau.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, November 28, 2023 4:35 PM
To: Eric Johnston <ejohnston@bldhd.org>
Subject: Question on the B/L Environmental Health Board of Appeals
 
Hi Eric,
 
The Board is interested in whether or not the aforementioned Board has qualifications for this
appointment – call with any questions. Thank you!
 

Laurel S. Evans
Executive Assistant
Leelanau County Administration
8527 E. Government Center Dr., Suite #101
Suttons Bay, MI 49682

231-256-9711 main

231-256-8101 direct
231-256-0120 fax
E-MAIL CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: The contents of this e-mail message and any attachments are intended solely for the addressee(s) and may contain confidential and/or legally privileged

99



40 
 

Section 8.9  INSPECTIONS AND INVESTIGATIONS 
 

To ensure compliance with this Code, the Health Officer may inspect, investigate 
or authorize an inspection or investigation to be made of any matter, thing, 
premise, place, person, record, vehicle, incident or event where a Health Officer 
has reason to believe that noncompliance with the laws enforced by the Health 
Department exists.  The Health Officer may seek administrative warrants, search 
warrants or court orders for access to the person, real property or personal 
property to be inspected or investigated. 

 
 
Section 8.10  RIGHT TO OBTAIN SAMPLES 
 

An inspection, under Section 8.9, shall include the right to obtain samples where 
a Health Officer has reason to believe that there is a likelihood of contamination 
of surface water, ground water, water supply or other unsanitary conditions.   

 
 
Section 8.11  OBSTRUCTION OF HEALTH OFFICER  
 

It shall be unlawful for any person to refuse to permit the Health Officer to make 
an inspection or investigation authorized by law and it shall be unlawful for any 
person to molest or resist the Health Officer in the discharge of their duties. 

 
 

Chapter IX – HEARINGS AND APPEALS 
 
 
Section 9.1  PURPOSE  
 

In order to provide for reasonable and equitable interpretations and applications 
of the provisions of this Code, there is hereby created an “Appeals Board”.   

 
 
Section 9.2  APPEALS BOARD MEMBERS 
 

The Appeals Board shall be comprised of six (6) members consisting of three (3) 
members from Benzie County and three (3) members from Leelanau County. 
 

1. The Appeals Board members for each county are appointed by the 
individual County Boards of Commissioners 

 
  

100



41 
 

2. Each Board of Commissioners appoint: 
a. One (1) member of the Board of Commissioners 
b. Two (2) Members-at-Large from their respective County 

 
 
Section 9.3  DUTIES OF THE APPEALS BOARD  
 

The Appeals Board shall have the following duties:  
1. To resolve disputes on interpretation of this Code. 
2. To handle appeals from administrative decisions. 

 
 

Section 9.4  PROCEDURES OF THE APPEALS BOARD  
 

In the event that an owner or interested person is adversely affected by any 
determination under this Code, the owner or such interested person may request 
in writing a hearing before the Appeals Board within thirty (30) days of the date of 
such determination.  Supporting documentation shall accompany the petition and 
shall include adequate information for the Appeals Board to adequately review, 
discuss and render a decision.  Upon receipt of such request, the Health Officer 
shall issue a Notice of Hearing within fifteen (15) days of the receipt of the 
request, and a Hearing shall be held at the next regular meeting of the Appeals 
Board scheduled for such purposes; provided, that a Hearing shall be conducted 
not later than sixty (60) days from the date of Notice of Hearing.  The Hearing 
shall be conducted with flexibility in regard to rules of evidence and because of 
the quasi-administrative nature of the proceeding, and the decision of affirming, 
reversing or modifying, any such determination shall be based upon a majority 
vote of the Appeals Board, and based upon the whole record of testimony and 
exhibits received at the Hearing.  Any decision of the Appeals Board is final. The 
Appeals Board may impose conditions on any affirmative decision. 
 

 
Section 9.5  DETERMINATION REVIEW BY THE APPEALS BOARD  
 

In reviewing a determination, the Appeals Board shall not reverse or modify any 
decision of the Health Officer unless the owner or an interested person can show 
any of the following: 

 
a. that there is no feasible and prudent alternative site, method or 

corrective action; or 
b. that the sewage disposal system, if applicable, will not contaminate or 

pollute a water supply, potable ground water, surface water and/or 
adversely affect or endanger the public health. 

 
The determinations required under (a) and (b) shall be based upon facts 
presented at the hearing, the application, and any supporting documents. 

101



42 
 

Section 9.6  DECISIONS OF THE APPEALS BOARD  
 
In considering a decision, the Appeals Board shall:  
 

a. Consider a questioned provision in light of other provisions of the 
Code;  

b. Consider the intent of the Code;  
c. Seek advice of legal counsel, if needed;  
d. Limit the scope of its decision to the subject of the appeal;  
e. State the grounds or reasons for its decision.  
 

The Appeals Board shall furnish the petitioner and Health Officer with a written 
statement of its final decision to affirm, dismiss or modify the decision of the 
Health Officer, including the reasons and grounds for such decision, within thirty 
(30) days following the hearing of any appeal. 

 
 
Section 9.7  VARIANCES 

 
Individual variances from the requirements of the Code may be made by the 
Health Officer after having determined, based on the facts and applicable Code 
sections, that all of the following conditions exist: 

a. That no substantial health hazard or public health nuisance is likely to 
occur therefrom; 

b. That strict compliance with the Code requirements would result in 
unnecessary or unreasonable hardship; 

c. There are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions 
applicable to the subject property 

d. That no state statute or other applicable laws would be violated by 
such variances, and; 

e. That the proposed variance would provide essentially equivalent 
protection of the public interest. 

 
A variance shall not be granted due to a self-created condition or the result of 
actions of the property owner or previous property owner(s) which occurred after 
the enactment of the Code provisions for which the variance is sought. 
 
The decision to grant a variance(s) shall be made in writing and shall include the 
facts and the basis for granting the variance.  The decision of the Health Officer 
may be appealed to the Appeals Board.  In considering such an appeal, the 
Appeals Board shall consider the factors contained in Section 9.6, which includes 
the conditions contained in Section 9.7. 

102



CONSTRUCTION BOARD OF APPEALS  
THREE SEATS OPEN / Plumbing/Mechanical Category  / FIVE CITIZEN MEMBERS / FIVE-YEAR TERMS 
Contact: Amber Weber, Building Official, Leelanau County Building Safety Department 
8527 E. Government Center Drive, Suttons Bay, MI  49682     231-256-9806 

Meets on an as-needed basis. 

This seven-member board hears appeals for decisions made by the County Construction Codes and may 
allow construction variances in certain situations. Categories include Architectural, Building, Electrical, 
and Plumbing/Mechanical. 

Last Name/First Name Position/Category Term Expires 

Cook, Clint Plumbing/Mechanical category December 31, 2023 
Griswold, Nathan Building category December 31, 2026 
Miller, Robert Architect category December 31, 2025 
Paolacci, George Electrical category December 31, 2024 
Walter, F. Jon Architect category December 31, 2027 
_____________ ____________ category December 31, 2028 
_____________ ____________ category December 31, 2028 

Mr. Cook does not want to be considered for reappointment; we will advertise to solicit more applicants 
to fill the remaining two seats. Please review Building Official Amber Weber’s recommendation for full 
details. 

Motion by ________to recommend to the Board of Commissioners to appoint 
____________ to the Construction Board of Appeals to a five-year term 
expiring December 31, 2028. Seconded by ____________. 

Construction Board of Appeals
Five Members, Five-Year Terms
Member 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Harry Ansorge
John Walter
Ben Hohnke
Larry Wichern
John Rutherford
Martin Easling
Ed Marshall
Gregory Bannon
Michael Oltersdorf
Bill Stevens
Larry Graves
Fred Steffens
Julius Bunek
Robert Biggs
Robert Bourne
Clinton Cook*
Tony Brakel
Kevin Buhr
Richard Peplinski
F. Jon Walter
Dale Boone
Richard Dunnebacke
George Paolacci
Nathan Griswold
Robert Miller
*Does not seek reappointment

103

mailto:aweber@leelanau.gov


From: Amber Weber
To: Laurel Evans
Date: Thursday, November 30, 2023 3:35:52 PM

Good Afternoon Laurel,
 
Since I placed my request to hold off on appointments to the Construction Board of Appeals, I have

received a request for an appeal. I have the meeting set up for January 11th and will be down one
member as his term ends this year.
 
I would like to request that Mr. Stephen Hoskins be appointed to the Construction Board of Appeals.
The remaining two seats will be filled after further advertising has been done. Although he does not
fit the plumbing/mechanical category, we’ve received an informal opinion from legal counsel that
there does not need to be someone from each category on the Board of Appeals as this is not stated
in Public Act 230 of 1972, Section 125.1514.
 
Counsel discourages requiring applicants meet one of each of the categories listed as this could
present further difficulties in filling vacancies to the Board in the future. Additionally, the informal
opinion from counsel indicated that if the County Board of Commissioners has set term limits for the
Construction Board of Appeals, these supersede the two year term limit noted in Public Act 230 of
1972, Section 125.1514 (1).
 
Please let me know if you need anything else from me.
 
 

Amber Weber
Building Official
Leelanau County Department of Building Safety
8527 E Government Center Drive, Suite 109
Suttons Bay, MI 49682
(231) 256-9806
 

104

mailto:aweber@leelanau.gov
mailto:levans@leelanau.gov


1

Laurel Evans

From: Trudy Galla
Sent: Wednesday, November 6, 2019 2:30 PM
To: Laurel Evans
Subject: FW: County boards & committees

Expires: Saturday, May 2, 2020 12:00 AM

See below for information on the tourism category for county planning commission. 
 

From: John Arens <john@coffeeguys.com>  
Sent: Monday, November 4, 2019 11:51 AM 
To: Trudy Galla <tgalla@co.leelanau.mi.us> 
Subject: Re: County boards & committees 
 

Greetings Again, Trudy; 

I think I might have a fairly deep area of experience and expertise that may be helpful to the Leelanau County 
Planning Commissions "Tourism Category". I've worked previously as the Creative Director for Central 
Advertising in Lansing, Michigan, and, as such, worked directly with such organizations as the Greater Lansing 
Convention and Visitors Bureau, the Michigan Automobile Dealers Association, and have worked with the Pure 
Michigan campaign; and, of course, I've been an owner of a tourism‐based business here in Leelanau Coutnty for 
over 25 years as the marketing director. 

Thus, I offer my services if they are useful.  

Also, Trudy, I've not received any updates or current minutes from the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority. It's 
possible they've been moved to my "spam" folder, although I doubt this is the case‐‐ but I thought I'd better 
follow up. 

Kind Regards, 

‐John C. Arens 

On 11/4/2019 10:21 AM, Trudy Galla wrote: 

Good morning. 
  
You submitted an application for consideration to boards & committees for Leelanau County, 
dated 10/12/18.  One that you checked off is “Leelanau County Planning 
Commission”.  Currently, we have an opening for the ‘tourism’ category for the county planning 
commission. 
Would you happen to have any experience or background that might fit this category?  Please 
let me know.  The county board will be considering appointments in an upcoming 
meeting.  Prior to their consideration, the county planning commission will review all 
applications and make a recommendation to the county board. 
  
  

105



Boards, Commissions, Committees, and Authorities Appointment
Application Updated:

Leelanau County
Appointment Application to Boards/Commissions/Committees/Authorities

The Leelanau County Board of Commissioners is committed to seeking qualified and interested citizens to
participate in public service through appointment to various Boards/Commissions/Committees/Authorities.
To be considered for an appointment, a citizen must be a resident of Leelanau County, a registered voter of
Leelanau County, and must have an application on file in the Administrator’s Office.

Please type or print legibly

Name: Date:

Address:

Occupation:

Daytime Telephone:

Email Address:

1. Are you a resident of Leelanau County? Yes No

2. Are you a registered voter of Leelanau County? Yes No

Township or Village: ________________________

3. Can you regularly attend scheduled meetings? Day: Yes No
Evening: Yes No

4. State your understanding of citizen involvement on Leelanau County Boards, Commissions, Committees,
and Authorities.

5. What are your qualifications for appointment?

Save/Print

John C Arens 10/12/2018

4622 Ski View Farms Circle, Cedar, MI 49621

Owner, Corporate Vice President, Leelanau Coffee Roasting Co., Inc.

231-649-5741 (Cell) 1-800-424-Java

john@coffeeguys.com

✔

✔

Centerville Township

✔

✔

According to MCL, Leelanau County is empowered through its elected County Board of Commissioners to
appoint citizens residing within their jurisdictions to posts on Boards, Commissions, Authorities, etc., that they
have by law established. It is my (very considered) opinion that all citizens ought to participate in such
self-governing processes as their time and talents allow.

Beyond the statutory qualifications, I have been a taxpayer for over a quarter century residing in Leelanau County, and am
subject to its laws and regulations. Further, I am a long-time owner of one of Leelanau County's more significant year-round
employers. I also have intimate knowledge of the regulatory environment as a small business owner in Leelanau County, and
know well the challenges and rewards as an entrepreneur in Leelanau County. I am also very familiar with the contours and
by-ways of the county itself, and have a thoroughgoing knowledge of the unique characteristics of the various and disparate
enclaves within it; Leelanau County has been my home since 1994.
As a landowner in Leelanau County, I am familiar with waste and graywater treatment, its permitting processes and
mechanical regulations and requirements. I also have a fairly thorough knowledge of inspection regimens, building code
requirements and their antecedents, and their building and mechanical underpinnings. I also have great depth of knowledge
as a father of children who've attended schools in Leelanau County for many years. In the past, I've also served on similar
boards in Ingham County (Tax Increment Financing Authority, Hospital/ Community Health Advisory Board, Downtown
Development, etc.). I am acquainted with Roberts Rules, and how to expedite public forum processes.

106



Boards, Commissions, Committees, and Authorities Appointment
Application Updated:

6. Please indicate below with an X any/all Boards/Commissions/Committees/Authorities you are willing to
serve on. Please place two Xs on the one(s) you feel strongly about:

X Board/Commission/Committee/Authority Have you served on this board
in the past? Give dates.

1 Area Agency on Aging of Northwest Michigan (AAA)
(1 member / 2 year terms)

2 Bay Area Transportation Authority (BATA)
(2 members / 3 year terms)

3 Benzie Leelanau District Health Department Board of Health
(3 members / 2 year terms)

4 Benzie Leelanau Environmental Health Board of Appeals
(3 members / 2 year terms)

5 Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA)
(7 members / 3 year terms)

6

Construction Codes Authority Board of Appeals
(5 members / 5 year terms)
Specify the category(ies) AND list your qualifications under question
#5: Architect

7 Michigan Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)
(2 members / 3 year terms)

8 Land Bank Fast Track Authority (LBA)
(7 members / 3 year terms)

9 Northern Lakes Community Mental Health Authority (CMH)
(2 members / 3 year terms)

10 Northern MI Regional Entity (NMRE) Substance Use Disorder
Services Policy Oversight Board (1 member / 3 year term)

11 Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency (NMCAA)
(1 member / 3 year term )

12 Northwestern Regional Airport Commission (NRAC)
(2 members / 3 year terms)

13 Parks & Recreation Commission (P & R)
(10 members / 3 year terms)

14
Planning Commission (PC) (11 members / 3 year terms)
Specify category(ies) you qualify for AND list your qualifications for
each category under question #5:Municipal Government

15
Soil Erosion, Sedimentation and Stormwater Runoff Control
Ordinance Board of Appeals (SESSRC)
(5 members / 3 year terms)

16
Solid Waste Council (SWC) (14 members / 2 year terms)
Specify category(ies) you qualify for AND list your qualifications under
question #5: Solid Waste Industry

17 Veterans Affairs Administrative Committee (VA)
(1 member / 2 year term)

18 Workforce Development Board (WDB)(2 members / 2 year terms)

Specify the category(ies) AND list your qualifications under question
#5:

Specify category(ies) you qualify for AND list your qualifications for
each category under question #5:

Specify category(ies) you qualify for AND list your qualifications under
question #5:

)

X
x
x
X
x

Plumbing

x
x

Business

Also qualifies for
Finance, Econ. Dev.

x
Industry Waste Generator

107



Boards, Commissions, Committees, and Authorities Appointment
Application Updated:

7. List references and contact information (minimum of two):

Reference #1

Reference #2

8. Are you available to attend an Open Meetings Act Training Session and a Freedom of Information Act
Training Session during your first year of appointment?

Yes No

9. Are you willing to consent to a Background Investigation?

Yes No

10. Signature: __________________________________________________

Dr. Robert K. Butryn
1383 N. Leland Estates Drive
Leland, MI 49654
231-499-3000

Hon. Russell W. Whipple, Mayor
City of Mason, MI
322 Lawton Street
Mason, MI 48854

✔

✔

John C. Arens Digitally signed by John C. Arens 
Date: 2018.10.25 19:50:23 -04'00'

108



Boards, Commissions, Committees, and Authorities Appointment Application 
Updated:  January 19, 2023 | Page 1 of 4 

Leelanau County 
Appointment Application to Boards/Commissions/Committees/Authorities 

The Leelanau County Board of Commissioners is committed to seeking qualified and interested citizens to 
participate in public service through appointment to various Boards/Commissions/Committees/Authorities.  
To be considered for an appointment, a citizen must be a resident and a registered voter of Leelanau County, 
and have an application on file in the Administrator’s Office. Applications will expire four (4) years from 
the issue date . 

 Please type or print legibly  

Name: Date: 

Address (Street, PO if applicable, City, State, Zip):  

Occupation: 

Daytime Telephone: 

Email Address: 

1. Are you a resident of Leelanau County?   Yes    No 
2. Are you a registered voter of Leelanau County?   Yes   No 

Township or Village:   ________________________

3. Can you regularly attend scheduled meetings? Day:   Yes    No 
Evening:    Yes   No 

4. State your understanding of citizen involvement on Leelanau County Boards, Commissions, Committees,
and Authorities (use page 4 if you need additional space).

5. What are your qualifications for appointment?

Stephen Hoskins 9/29/2023

6101 N Manitou Trl, Northport, MI 49670

Residential Builder

(231)432-0229

steve@birchcovemi.com

✔

✔

Leland

✔

✔

My understanding is that Boards, comissions, comitees and authorities may be asked to meet in order to
hear cases of importance, consider many factors, do relevant research and come to fact based and ethical
decisions on important matters which affect the safety and growth of our community.

I am a licensed builder and leelanau county resident. I build houses and file all of the relevant permits, and I
stay up to date on codes. I also spend a lot of time researching the latest trends in building science. I think of
myself as having a good relationship with the Leelanau county department of building safety. Sometimes
there are new ideas worth considering, which challenge the current way of doing things, and I find it
interesting to dive into the potential benefits and consequences of new ideas in building science. I have a
vested interest in the future of building safety and building science in Leelanau county as I intend to live here
and build homes here for many years to come.

Stephen Hoskins 109



 
Boards, Commissions, Committees, and Authorities Appointment Application 

Updated: August 17, 2023 | Page 2 of 4 

6. Please indicate below with an X any/all Boards/Commissions/Committees/Authorities you are willing to 
serve on.  Please place two Xs on the one(s) you feel strongly about: 

 X Board/Commission/Committee/Authority Have you served on this board 
in the past?           Give dates. 

1  Area Agency on Aging of Northwest Michigan (AAA) 
(1 citizen appointee / 2-year term) 

 

2  Bay Area Transportation Authority (BATA) 
(1 citizen appointee / 3-year term) 

 

3  Benzie-Leelanau District Health Department Board of Health 
(1 citizen appointee / 2-year term) 

 

4  Benzie-Leelanau Environmental Health Board of Appeals 
(2 citizen appointees / 2-year terms) 

 

5  Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) 
(5 citizen appointees / 3-year terms) 

 

6 
 Construction Board of Appeals  

(7 citizen appointees / 5-year terms) Specify the category(ies) AND list your 
qualifications under question #5:   

 

7  Land Bank Fast Track Authority (LBA) 
(3 citizen appointees / 3-year terms) 

 
 

8 
 Leelanau County Energy Futures Task Force 

(11 citizen appointees / ends in 1 year) Specify category(ies) you qualify for 
AND list your qualifications for each category under question #5: 

 

9  Leland Dam Authority (LDA) (2 citizen appointees; 1 engineer 
background, 1 riparian / 3-year terms) 

 

10 
 Materials Management Plan Committee (MMPC) (11 appointees / 5-

year terms) Specify category(ies) you qualify for AND list your qualifications for 
each category under question #5: 

 

11  Michigan Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) 
(2 citizen appointees / 3-year terms) 

 

12  Northern Lakes Community Mental Health Authority (CMH) 
(1 citizen appointee / 3-year term) 

 

13  Northern MI Regional Entity (NMRE) Substance Use Disorder Services 
Policy Oversight Board (1 citizen appointee / 3-year term) 

 

14  Northwest Regional Airport Authority (NRAA) 
(2 citizen appointees / 3-year terms) 

 

15  Parks & Recreation Commission (P & R) 
(5 citizen appointees / 3-year terms) 

 

16 
 Planning Commission (PC)    (10 citizen appointees / 3-year terms) 

Specify category(ies) you qualify for AND list your qualifications for each category 
under question #5, pg. 1:  

 

17 
 Soil Erosion, Sedimentation and Stormwater Runoff Control 

Ordinance Board of Appeals (SESSRC) 
(5 citizen appointees / 3-year terms)  

 

18 
 Solid Waste Council (SWC)  (9 citizen appointees, 2 ex-officio 

nonvoting members from the Industry / 2-year terms) 
 

19  Veterans Affairs Administrative Committee (VAAC) 
(1 citizen appointee / 2-year term) 

 

20  Workforce Development Board (WDB) 
(2 citizen appointees / 3-year terms) 

Applications are made directly 
to Networks Northwest 

 

XX no
Building

Please make a selection

Please make a selection

Please make a selection

Select one

Stephen Hoskins 110



 
Boards, Commissions, Committees, and Authorities Appointment Application 

Updated:  January 19, 2023 | Page 3 of 4 

7.  List references and contact information (minimum of two): 

Reference #1 

 

 

Reference #2 

 

 

8. Are you available to attend training sessions for the Open Meetings Act and Freedom of Information Act 
during your first year of appointment? 

  Yes   No   

 

9. Are you willing to consent to a Background Investigation? 

  Yes    No 

 

10. Signature: ___________________________________________________ 

Printed Name: ________________________________________________  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

■

■

Stephen Hoskins Digitally signed by Stephen Hoskins 
Date: 2023.09.29 16:55:18 -04'00'

Stephen Hoskins

Charlie Sessoms
(231)866-1721

Gary Cheadle
(231)271-6783

111



112



113



6. Please indicate below with an X any/all Boards/Commissions/Committees/Authorities you are willing to

serve on. Please place two Xs on the one(s) you feel strongly about:

X 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 � 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 X 

14 I 

15 

16 

17 X 

18 

Board/Commission/Committee/Authority 

Area Agency on Aging of Northwest Michigan (AAA) 

{1 member/ 2 year terms) 

Bay Area Transportation Authority (BATA} 

(2 members/ 3 year terms) 
Benzie-Leelanau District Health Department Board of Health 

(3 members/ 2 year terms) 
Benzie-Leelanau Environmental Health Board of Appeals 

{3 members/ 2 year terms) 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) 

(7 members/ 3 year terms) 
Construction Codes Authority Board of Appeals 

(5 members/ 5 year terms) 
S[]_ecifv the categprvOesl AND list 'f.OUr gua/ifjcations under question 
#5: Select One

Michigan Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) 

(2 members/ 3 year terms) See Agency-specific application 
Land Bank Fast Track Authority {LBA) 

(7 members/ 3 year terms) 
Northern Lakes Community Mental Health Authority (CMH) 

(2 members/ 3 year terms) 
Northern Ml Regional Entity (NMRE) Substance Use Disorder 

Services Policy Oversight Board (1 member/ 3 year term) 
Northwest Michigan Community Action Agency (NMCAA) 

(1 member/ 3 year term - COMMISSIONER APPOINTMENn 

Northwestern Regional Airport Commission (NRAC) 

(2 members/ 3 year terms) 
Parks & Recreation Commission (P & R) 

(10 members/ 3 year terms) 
Planning Commission (PC) (11 members/ 3 year terms) 
S[]_eci[¥_ categ_orv[iesl If.OU g_uali'fv [or AND list v.our g_ualifjcations tor 
each categor'L. under question #5: Select One

Soil Erosion, Sedimentation and Stormwater Runoff Control 

Ordinance Board of Appeals (SESSRC) 

(5 members/ 3 year terms) 
Solid Waste Council (SWC) (14 members/ 2 year terms) 
Sp_ecifvcateg_ort_(iesl y_ou g_ualifu. [or AND list y_our g_ualitfcations under 
question #5: Select One

Veterans Affairs Administrative Committee (VA) 

(1 member/ 2 year term - must be a Veteran 
Workforce Development Board (WDB}(2 members/ 2 year terms) 
Mustapply with Agency specific application only 

Haveyou served bn this board 
in the past? Give dates. 

Boards, Commissions, Committees, and Authorities Appointment 

Application Updated: August 14, 2017 

Building

Housing

114



115



116



117



118



119



120



NORTHERN LAKES COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY (CMH)  
ONE COUNTY CITIZEN MEMBER / THREE-YEAR TERM (Term expires March 31.) 
Contact:  Brian Martinus /Stacy Maiville 
105 Hall St., Traverse City, MI 49684    231-922-4850 

Meets on the third Thursday of every month at 2:15 p.m. at various locations throughout the region. 

This Authority provides a comprehensive array of mental health services appropriate to the 
conditions of individuals within the geographic service area (Crawford, Grand Traverse, 
Leelanau, Missaukee, Roscommon and Wexford Counties).  One Commissioner and one at-large 
citizen from Leelanau County will serve on this board. 
 

Northern Lakes Community Mental Health Authority (NLCMH) 
Last Name/First Name Position/Category Term Expires 

McMorrow, Greg At large – citizen  March 31, 2024 
Wessell, Ty Commissioner appointee Annually 
 
Mr. McMorrow would like to be considered for reappointment, and the Agency wants to retain 
him on this Board. 
 

 
Motion by ________to recommend to the County Board of Commissioners to 
reappoint/appoint ____________ to the Northern Lakes Community Mental 
Health Board to a three-year term expiring March 31, 2027. Seconded by 
____________. 

Northern Lakes Community  Mental Health Authority (CMH)
Two Members, Three-Year Terms
Member 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Otto Mork
Richard Waite
Kathleen Firestone
Rochelle Steimel
Jean Watkoski (C)
Richard Schmuckal (C)
William Bunek (C)
David Marshall (C)
Thomas Van Pelt (C)
Ty Wessell (C)
Mary Schwarz
Helen Stimson
Frank Tosiello
Betty Bushey
Greg McMorrow

121

mailto:brian.martinus@nlcmh.org
mailto:stacy.maiville@nlcmh.org


From: Greg McMorrow
To: Laurel Evans
Subject: Re: Leelanau County Boards and Commissions: NLCMHA Board appointment
Date: Friday, October 20, 2023 1:49:43 PM

Hi Laurel: 

   I would definitely like to stay on the Northern Lakes Community Mental Health board. 

  Thanks for the application. Do you need the completed application by the 24th or just this
notice that I would like to renew for another term?

Many thanks,
Greg 

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 18, 2023, at 4:09 PM, Laurel Evans <levans@leelanau.gov> wrote:


Hi Greg,
 
I am in the process of gathering information for this year’s round of appointments to
the various boards and commissions.
 
You currently represent Leelanau County on the following Board –
 

Northern Lakes Community Mental Health Authority (first full term, expires on
December 31, 2023)

 
You are eligible to serve another term. If you would like to be considered for
reappointment to this board, please respond by Tuesday, October 24, 2023. I have
also attached a new application for you to fill out, as applications expire four years from
the date of creation, along with a copy of your current application to assist you in this
endeavor.
 
On  behalf of your fellow citizens of Leelanau County, thank you for your service.
 

Laurel S. Evans
Executive Assistant
Leelanau County Administration
8527 E. Government Center Dr., Suite #101
Suttons Bay, MI 49682

231-256-9711 main

231-256-8101 direct

122

mailto:gregory.mcmorrow@gmail.com
mailto:levans@leelanau.gov


11/29/23

123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



Boards, Commissions, Committees, and Authorities Appointment Application
Updated:  January 19, 2023 | Page 1 of 4 

Leelanau County 
Appointment Application to Boards/Commissions/Committees/Authorities 

The Leelanau County Board of Commissioners is committed to seeking qualified and interested citizens to 
participate in public service through appointment to various Boards/Commissions/Committees/Authorities.  
To be considered for an appointment, a citizen must be a resident and a registered voter of Leelanau County, 
and have an application on file in the Administrator’s Office. Applications will expire four (4) years from 
the issue date . 

 Please type or print legibly  

Name: Date: 

Address (Street, PO if applicable, City, State, Zip):  

Occupation: 

Daytime Telephone: 

Email Address: 

1. Are you a resident of Leelanau County? Yes  No 
2. Are you a registered voter of Leelanau County? Yes No

Township or Village:   ________________________

3. Can you regularly attend scheduled meetings? Day:   Yes  No 
Evening:    Yes No 

4. State your understanding of citizen involvement on Leelanau County Boards, Commissions, Committees,
and Authorities (use page 4 if you need additional space).

5. What are your qualifications for appointment?

Leelanau County
Appointment Application to Boards/Commissions/Committees/Authorities

y

The Leelanau County Board of Commissioners is committed to seeking qualified and interested citizens to
participate in public service through appointment to various Boards/Commissions/Committees/Authorities. 
To be considered for an appointment, a citizen must be a resident and a registered voter of Leelanau County, 
and have an application on file in the Administrator’s Office. Applications will expire four (4) years from 
the issue date . 

Please type or print legibly 

Name:

Boards,s Commissions, s Committees, and s Authorities Appointment Application
Updated: January 19, 2023 | Page 1 of 4

Allison Zimpfer

Kasson

Allison Zimpfer

10/01/2023

PO Box 102 Maple City, MI 49664

Social Worker/Project Manager

317-441-6196

allison.marie.rogers@gmail.com

✔

✔

✔

✔

137



 
Boards, Commissions, Committees, and Authorities Appointment Application 

Updated: August 17, 2023 | Page 2 of 4 

6. Please indicate below with an X any/all Boards/Commissions/Committees/Authorities you are willing to 
serve on.  Please place two Xs on the one(s) you feel strongly about: 

 X Board/Commission/Committee/Authority Have you served on this board 
in the past?           Give dates. 

1  Area Agency on Aging of Northwest Michigan (AAA) 
(1 citizen appointee / 2-year term) 

 

2  Bay Area Transportation Authority (BATA) 
(1 citizen appointee / 3-year term) 

 

3  Benzie-Leelanau District Health Department Board of Health 
(1 citizen appointee / 2-year term) 

 

4  Benzie-Leelanau Environmental Health Board of Appeals 
(2 citizen appointees / 2-year terms) 

 

5  Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) 
(5 citizen appointees / 3-year terms) 

 

6 
 Construction Board of Appeals  

(7 citizen appointees / 5-year terms) Specify the category(ies) AND list your 
qualifications under question #5:   

 

7  Land Bank Fast Track Authority (LBA) 
(3 citizen appointees / 3-year terms) 

 
 

8 
 Leelanau County Energy Futures Task Force 

(11 citizen appointees / ends in 1 year) Specify category(ies) you qualify for 
AND list your qualifications for each category under question #5: 

 

9  Leland Dam Authority (LDA) (2 citizen appointees; 1 engineer 
background, 1 riparian / 3-year terms) 

 

10 
 Materials Management Plan Committee (MMPC) (11 appointees / 5-

year terms) Specify category(ies) you qualify for AND list your qualifications for 
each category under question #5: 

 

11  Michigan Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) 
(2 citizen appointees / 3-year terms) 

 

12  Northern Lakes Community Mental Health Authority (CMH) 
(1 citizen appointee / 3-year term) 

 

13  Northern MI Regional Entity (NMRE) Substance Use Disorder Services 
Policy Oversight Board (1 citizen appointee / 3-year term) 

 

14  Northwest Regional Airport Authority (NRAA) 
(2 citizen appointees / 3-year terms) 

 

15  Parks & Recreation Commission (P & R) 
(5 citizen appointees / 3-year terms) 

 

16 
 Planning Commission (PC)    (10 citizen appointees / 3-year terms) 

Specify category(ies) you qualify for AND list your qualifications for each category 
under question #5, pg. 1:  

 

17 
 Soil Erosion, Sedimentation and Stormwater Runoff Control 

Ordinance Board of Appeals (SESSRC) 
(5 citizen appointees / 3-year terms)  

 

18 
 Solid Waste Council (SWC)  (9 citizen appointees, 2 ex-officio 

nonvoting members from the Industry / 2-year terms) 
 

19  Veterans Affairs Administrative Committee (VAAC) 
(1 citizen appointee / 2-year term) 

 

20  Workforce Development Board (WDB) 
(2 citizen appointees / 3-year terms) 

Applications are made directly 
to Networks Northwest 

 

Please make a selection

Please make a selection

Education

Please make a selection

Select one

XX No

X No

X No

138



Boards, Commissions, Committees, and Authorities Appointment Application
Updated:  January 19, 2023 | Page 3 of 4 

7. List references and contact information (minimum of two):

Reference #1

Reference #2 

8. Are you available to attend training sessions for the Open Meetings Act and Freedom of Information Act
during your first year of appointment?

  Yes   No

9. Are you willing to consent to a Background Investigation?

  Yes    No

10. Signature: ___________________________________________________

Printed Name: ________________________________________________

_________________________

Allison Zimpfer

Amelia Mayhew, 503-425-9969

Dana Getsinger, 231-313-4600

✔

✔

139



Department Approval: __________________________________________ Date: ____________________________  

EXECUTIVE DOCUMENT SUMMARY 
Department: ___________________________________ 

Contact Person: ________________________________ 

Telephone Number: _____________________________ 

Submittal Dates 

Select Meeting Type: _________________________

Date of Meeting: ______________________________

Financial/Source Selection Method 
Vendor: ______________________________________ 

Address/ 
Phone: 

 ____________________________________________ 

Select One: __________________________________

Other: _____________________________________

Account No.: __________________________________

CIP Project?

If Grant, Match Account No.: ________________________

Budgeted Amount: ____________________________  Contracted Amount: _______________________________ 

Document Description 

Request to Waive Board Policy on Bid Requirements Department Head/Elected Official Authorization 

Suggested Recommendation: 

Catherine Hartesvelt, IFD
231-256-8112 12/05/2023

Year End Adjustments

This is a yearly request that authorizes the Interim Finance Director to make necessary adjustments to
budgets at year-end to avoid deficits and audit findings within the General Fund.

Finance/Accounting
Executive Board

I move to recommend that the County Board of Commissioners approve/authorize the Interim Finance
Director to make any year-end adjustments and transfers deemed necessary to avoid year-end deficits in
the various department budgets within the General Fund. No transfers/adjustments to go beyond funds in
contingency. All transfers/adjustments require the signature of the Interim Finance Director.

Catherine L Hartesvelt Digitally signed by Catherine L Hartesvelt 
Date: 2023.11.22 17:05:23 -05'00'

✔

✔

✔

Select One

Select OneDescription:

11/22/2023
140



141



 5:11 PM

November 27, 2023

2 of 83 

County of Leelanau

Report:  Rbudsta2.rpt 

Period Ending Date:  September 30, 2023

2024 ADOPTED BUDGET

Account Number

Department   100101  Board of Commissioners

Fund   101  General Fund 

2021 Audited 2022 Audited 2023 

Year-to-Date

2023 Adopted 

Budget

2023 Amended 

Budget

2024 Proposed 

Budget

2024 BOC 

Changes & Dept 

Requests

2024 Adopted 

Budget

Account Name

 234.00  312.00 312.00  312.00Telephone
100101-850.000

 312.00 312.00  312.00 312.00

 493.20  1,200.00 2,324.46  929.73Telephone - Cell phone
100101-850.001

 1,200.00 1,200.00  1,200.00 1,200.00

 5,796.30  12,000.00 10,820.52  12,860.62Travel
100101-860.000

 12,000.00 12,000.00  12,000.00 12,000.00

 2,386.88  4,000.00 3,246.32  4,542.18Taxable Travel
100101-860.001

 4,000.00 4,000.00  4,000.00 4,000.00

 2,247.24  2,000.00 7,028.61  9,317.01Printing and Publishing
100101-900.000

 3,000.00 2,000.00  3,000.00 2,000.00

 21,403.50  10,827.00 10,726.10  10,719.00Computer Charges (Rental)
100101-941.000

 28,538.00 28,538.00  28,538.00 28,538.00

 4,174.48  4,000.00 4,104.60  6,403.20Copy Machine Charges (Rental)
100101-942.000

 4,000.00 4,000.00  4,000.00 4,000.00

 23,511.75  24,647.00 19,662.00  22,029.00Buildings & Grounds Charges
100101-943.000

 31,349.00 31,349.00  31,349.00 31,349.00

 2,506.27  8,000.00 2,821.52  5,851.31Education
100101-960.000

 6,000.00 8,000.00  6,000.00 8,000.00

 64,368.45  80,124.00 65,761.68  62,932.33Contrib. to Other Agency
100101-965.000

 80,124.00 80,124.00  80,124.00 80,124.00

 253,700.00  0.00 0.00  0.00Lake Bluffs Special Assessment
100101-965.004

 0.00 253,700.00  0.00 0.00

 92,042.69  74,426.00 14,357.37  98,914.16Special Projects
100101-967.000

 15,000.00 122,912.00  15,000.00 122,912.00

 17,831.45  30,000.00 16,107.50  16,000.00Substance Abuse Prevention
100101-967.019

 30,000.00 30,000.00  0.00 30,000.00

 2,589.99  0.00 11,852.62  2,893.00Capital Outlay < $5,000.00
100101-970.010

 0.00 2,600.00  0.00 2,600.00

 1,012,362.93  1,301,963.00  856,848.00  840,536.00 587,705.14  914,530.03  912,135.00Expenses Total    1,048,263.00

 1,012,362.93  840,536.00 914,530.03Board of Commissioners Dept Total  587,705.14  1,048,263.00 912,135.00  1,301,963.00  856,848.00

142

LEvans
Highlight



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Leelanau County 
8257 E Government Center Drive, Suite 101 

Suttons Bay, Michigan 49682 

Project Management Services 
Rural Broadband  

  
December 1st, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

  

143



  

 

 
 

 
 
February 8th, 2022 
 
 
Leelanau County Board of Commissioners 
Deb Allen, County Administrator 
8257 E Government Center Drive, Suite 101 
Suttons Bay, Michigan 49682 
 
RE: Project Management Services – Rural Broadband  
 
Thank you for the opportunity to offer the attached proposal for Project Management services for the 

ongoing construction of Broadband Fiber projects in Leelanau County.  We had all hoped to be seeing 

these projects concluded by the end of 2023, but we also know what obstacles we have faced in 

obtaining that goal.  Point Broadband has had a couple of setbacks but is now moving forward with a 

schedule to complete their commitment in 2024.  One goal of this proposal will be to help Point meet 

that commitment earlier in the year than later.   

We also expected to have the remaining four western townships under some type of agreement and 

well underway by this time as well.  Although we don’t have the firm commitment yet, we appear to be 

only weeks away from having a plan in place that will also see the western townships completed in 

2024.  With this proposal, we will strive to make sure that the ISPs’ commitments are met completely, 

and that we continue to work with the Board of Commissioners and the community to address all issues 

professionally and expeditiously.  We genuinely appreciate this opportunity, and hope that this 

proposal, and the work associated with it exceeds your expectations. 

Sincerely, 
 

 
 
 
Chris Scharrer, RCDD/NTS/OSP – CTS-D  
Founder and CEO 
DCS Technology Design, LLC

 
 
 

 

144



  
      

 

  

DCS Technology Design, LLC                          PAGE | 2                                                    DECEMBER 1ST, 2023 

 

Project Overview 
 

The current contract is set to expire December 31st, 2023, which provided project management services 

for seven townships (Elmwood, Solon, Bingham, Centerville, Suttons Bay, Leland, and Leelanau) and 

portions of Cleveland and Kasson townships for the oversight of Point Broadband activities relative to 

these areas.  The current DCS contract also covered coordination and planning for Broadband services to 

Glen Arbor, Empire, and the remainder of Kasson and Cleveland Townships, however, contract 

negotiations with potential ISPs and project management of these areas were not included.  Generally, 

the scope of the contract has been followed, but as you know, the duration of the work that Point 

Broadband is performing is being extended into 2024.  And the coordination and planning for the 

western townships has probably gone beyond what we anticipated, but my commitment to the County 

and the Project has been my top priority. 

Moving into 2024, I think the scope is still pretty clear, and DCS has demonstrated that we will stay 

committed to this project for the duration and do “whatever it takes” to serve the residents of this 

county.  We must get an ISP engaged for the western townships and continue to guide and oversee 

Point Broadband to reach all 3100+ unserved homes in their service area.  We currently have a 

commitment from Point to complete the unserved portions of their project by June of 2024, but 

realistically, I believe we need to maintain oversight of their activities as they continue to build into 

existing service areas as they have planned, while making sure that all unserved homes get priority.  We 

also need to get a funding plan in place, and I believe we are very close to an agreement with Charter 

Communications that will fill almost all of the remaining unserved gaps throughout the western 

townships.  We have separate discussions going on currently with the Sleeping Bear National Parks to 

reach about 15 locations, that are being set aside from the Charter scope due to their remote locations 

and extremely high costs.   

As this project has shown, it is difficult to predict what challenges we will face in 2024, but we know we 

have a goal to get the Point Broadband portion done by June, and to have a project plan in motion for 

the western townships with a schedule yet to be determined.   

  

145



  
      

 

  

DCS Technology Design, LLC                          PAGE | 3                                                    DECEMBER 1ST, 2023 

 

Scope Outline 
 

• Work with County Legal Team on all legal issues 

• In coordination with the ISPs, continue to update and enforce a master workplan/schedule of 
work to be performed. 

• Work with the ISPs on coordination and cost saving initiatives with other county interests, 
potential suppliers, or authorities. 

• Continue working with the established budget/schedule of values for the County and ARPA 
contributions to the project.  Develop any SOV requirements for the Western Townships 

• Independently perform verification of work as needed: including field verification of progress 
throughout the duration of the project to assure all unserved locations are completed. 

• Receive/review invoices for accuracy before county authorizes payment.  Present reviewed 
invoices to county administration with recommendations for payment 

• Attend meeting, as required, including public meetings that may occur outside normal work 
hours. 

• Provide status updates as needed to the county’s administrator, commissioners, and township 
supervisors (based on specific District and Township activities), and LIFT Committee leadership. 

• Collaborate with County IT/GIS to create, maintain and regularly update a user friendly, 
interactive map of the buildout by vendors, schedule/work in progress/completed work for the 
County’s website. 

• As locations are completed, update GIS records in coordination with Leelanau County GIS 
personnel, to be posted on the public information web site. 

• Provide a final written report at the conclusion of the project. 

  

146



  
      

 

  

DCS Technology Design, LLC                          PAGE | 4                                                    DECEMBER 1ST, 2023 

 

Fee Proposal 
As this project has shown, it is difficult to predict what challenges we will face in 2024, but we know we 

have a goal to get the Point Broadband portion done by June, and to have a project plan in motion for 

the western townships with a schedule yet to be determined.  Our current contract excluded travel and 

lodging, and assumed we would use our local resources for certain inspection requirements while 

conducting all other business virtually.  We still have the local resources and will continue to be virtual 

for most of our activities, but as we have been doing, I will personally travel and be available to be there 

in person when needed.  Our travel clause in the current contract is being eliminated.  

For the 2024 calendar year, the proposal is for a fixed fee of $156,000.00 total, broken down as follows.  

Project Segment Duration Cost 

7 Eastern Townships, Point Broadband 6-12 Months $96,000.00 

4 Western Townships, ISP TBD (likely Charter Communications)  12 Months $60,000.00 

DCS Principal Travel Expenses (reimbursable based on IRS 
guidelines) See below 

  

Proposed Fixed Fee $156,000.00 

This would be invoiced monthly, starting January 1st at $13,000 per month, with any remaining months 

due in full for either respective project if completed earlier in 2024.  That means that if we can get Point 

Broadband to complete their work by June of 2024, (6 months into 2024), DCS can invoice for the 

remaining $48,000 (lump sum) for that portion of the contract.  The western townships would still have 

a balance of $30,000 to continue monthly ($5,000) until they are completed.  

  

147



  
      

 

  

DCS Technology Design, LLC                          PAGE | 5                                                    DECEMBER 1ST, 2023 

 

Clarifications & Assumptions 

 
1. All public interface expenses (website, mailings, contact phone numbers, etc.,) shall be the 

responsibility of Leelanau County. 

2. Proposal includes vehicle, travel and other associated expense for field verification work as 

needed.  

3. The proposal does not include additional printing, mailing or other costs that may be 

associated with any type of information campaign. 

4. Proposal includes travel limited to within Leelanau County.  Additional travel at the request 

of Leelanau County Administrator may be invoiced at T&M rates TBD. 

5. Proposal includes all software licensing as outlined in the proposal (ArcGIS, Project, 

OneDrive, etc.)  Additional software requirements (if requested by the County) shall be 

provided at County expense. 

148


	12/5/2023 BOC Executive Board agenda
	Presentation: Leelanau Co. Substance Misuse Prevenion Coalition
	Admin: MMRMA Contract Renewal
	BOC: Leelanau County SMPC/CHS request to approve termination letter
	LCSO: FY2024 K9 Unit golf outing request
	HR: Blue Cross/Blue Shield Contract Renewal
	HR: C&M Insurance fee increase
	Probate/Family Ct.: Ottawa Co. / 20th Judicial Circuit Ct. Detention Bed Rental/treatment agr.
	Drain Comm: GEI Consultants renewal agreement
	Senior Svcs.: Acceptance of Donation
	Clerk: Fidlar Technologies Software Purchase
	Boards and Commissions Appts
	Finance: Year End Adjustments
	Admin: DCS Technology Design Renewal Agreement



